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ZONING BOARD OF APPEALS

MEETING – JANUARY 24, 2008

(Time Noted – 7:00 PM)

CHAIRPERSON CARDONE: I’d like to call the meeting of the ZBA to order. The first order of business is the Public Hearing scheduled for today. The procedure of this Board is that the applicant will be called upon to step forward, state their request and explain why it should be granted. The Board will then ask the applicant any questions it may have and then any questions or comments from the public will be entertained. After all the Public Hearings have been completed the Board may adjourn to confer with Counsel regarding any legal questions it may have. The Board will try to render a decision on all applications this evening; however, the Board has up to 62 days to reach a determination. I would ask that if anyone has a cell phone to please turn it off so that we are not interrupted. And also when speaking please speak into the microphone so that it can be recorded and before you speak give your name and address. Before we get started if there is anyone here to hear the application of Vandemark and Mancinelli, that application has been withdrawn and I will read that letter into the record: To whom it may concern: I am withdrawing my application to the Zoning Board of Appeals regarding Williams Avenue R-2 Zone, Newburgh, NY. J. Vandemark/T. Mancinelli. And also at this time I would like to thank Robert Kunkel for his service to the ZBA and the Town of Newburgh and to welcome our new Board Member Michael Maher. 

PRESENT ARE:

GRACE CARDONE

JOHN MC KELVEY 

BRENDA DRAKE

RUTH EATON

RONALD HUGHES

MICHAEL MAHER

JAMES MANLEY








DAVID A. DONOVAN, ESQ.


CODE COMPLIANCE: GERALD CANFIELD, JOSEPH MATTINA

(Time Noted – 7:02 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 24, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:02 PM) 


NORTHEAST REALTY HOLDINGS, LLC
            CORPORATE BLVD & RTE 17K







(95-1-69.24 changed to 95-1-76) IB ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variance for more than the allowed 25% of the rooms to include kitchens to construct a 140-room hotel with a kitchen in each room.

Chairperson Cardone: Our first applicant this evening Northeast Realty Holdings, LLC, Corporate Boulevard and Route 17K.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on January 15th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on January 16th. The applicant sent out thirteen   registered letters, twelve were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Could you identify yourself?

Mr. Cleary: Good evening, my name is Mike Cleary and I am a principal in Northeast Realty Holdings out of Albany. We came before the Planning Board approximately two and a half years ago to have a twelve (12) acre parcel on 17K sub-divided and site plan approval for a 60,000 sq ft warehouse and 140-room hotel on the front portion of the site. We received our approvals in the fall of 2006 and subsequent to that an Article 78 was filed against the Planning Board and us concerning the approval. That Article 78 is still…we won the case and then it was sent to the Appellate Division and we are just waiting that decision. In the meantime, we have lost our ability to put the flag of the franchise that we wanted to put on the property based upon contract expirations and other pertinent issues but mostly they could not hold it or wait any longer for us so we have decided to…obviously we have to seek other franchises and the two franchises or three that we are considering are extended stay hotels. Extended stay being, the Homewood that was just opened…residence in a…Summerfield by Hyatt or the Starwood has an aloft product as well. So we’re looking to ask this Board for relief to allow kitchens in more than 25% of the rooms because the extended stay hotel is 100% rooms. The room count is not increasing and I’m not going guarantee it but I can tell you it’s probably going to be less than 140 rooms at this point in time. And we seek relief to add the kitchens to the rooms and then once the Article 78 is concluded we’ll have to go back to planning for an architectural review and then for the changes of the façade and go forward. 

Mr. McKelvey: You said less than 140 you think?

Mr. Cleary: Oh, I know it’s going to be less than 140 but we’re approved at the Planning Board level for 140. I can just tell you it will not exceed that but we’re probably going to be…the prototypes in this area are probably going to be around 110, 120 rooms. 

Mr. Manley: So now based on your request, the Code permits up to 25% so basically you are looking for 100% of all the rooms so basically you are looking for the Code not to apply in this particular case, correct?

Mr. Cleary: Correct.  This is an entire market industry. I think the Homewood which has just opened on…it wasn’t in this Township it was Windsor. Is it Windsor over there?

Ms. Eaton: New Windsor. 

Mr. Cleary: That’s an identical brand they’re 100% extended stay rooms or hotel rooms with kitchens and they’re more for a extended stay type. They’re not for leisure travel they are more for…

Mr. McKelvey: That’s the one on Stewart?

Mr. Cleary: Yes. It’s an identical, it’s not identical …that’s a Hilton Homewood but the brand we will be putting whether it be Residence Inn by Marriott or Summerfield by Hyatt they are going to have the same room configurations.

Mr. Manley: How can you make the case to this Board and the people of the Town of Newburgh that your request isn’t substantial in nature?

Mr. Cleary: Well, number one is the law itself is prohibiting an industry…in the sense…

Mr. Donovan: If I can just…I don’t mean to interrupt or cut off the question but the question that I have…I have a basic question. You’ve applied for an area variance and the question in my mind is…

Mr. Cleary: An area variance?

Mr. Donovan: That’s what you’ve applied for.

Mr. Cleary: Is that what it would fall under?

Mr. Donovan: And the question is, why is this an area variance and not a use variance?

Mr. Cleary: That I don’t have an answer for. I’d have to…

Ms. Libolt: I’m Kelly Libolt from Fuss & O’Neill; the reason that we applied for an area variance is because the use is permitted. The hotel use is a permitted use. It’s the dimensions that are not permitted.

Mr. Donovan: I guess my question though is if you go from no kitchens to 100% kitchens and I’m also kind of confused and I look over at Code Compliance…not that you are going to have the answer off the top of your head but there is the provision that talks about no more than 25% kitchens but yet the definition of a hotel allows for only a central kitchen. And the question in my mind is when you take this hotel which has no kitchens and you put every room with a kitchen does that not change the very nature of the use thereby necessitating a use variance and not an area variance? Which is a whole different burden of proof that you have.

Ms. Libolt: I agree with you and I believe that this is an area variance because the underlying use being a hotel is permitted. We’re not requesting a deviation from the underlying use on the property. Hotels are permitted.

Mr. Cleary: And kitchens are as well. It’s just that there is a maximum of 25%.

Ms. Libolt: Percent that’s permitted. 

Mr. Cleary: So we’re looking to increase the area of allowable kitchens in the hotel to the 100% level which the franchise will mandate as far as extended stay is concerned.

Mr. Hughes: What do you call an extended stay?

Mr. Cleary: An extended stay is a hotel room that is outfitted more, with a kitchen and …

Mr. Hughes: No, to whom are you going to lease or rent or whatever you would call it?

Mr. Cleary: No, we’ll own it…it’s a client, a franchise…

Mr. Hughes: The client I am talking about is this welfare, social security…?  

Mr. Cleary: Oh, no, no, no, no, this is a…extended stay is a for corporate visitors that…it’s a hotel. It’s no different than any other hotel that you have in your mind. It’s just that it’s…the rooms are a little bigger, have kitchens and they are made for people that will stay in Town for 6, 7, 8 days on the average instead of 1 or 2.

Mr. Hughes: And, what does the kitchen consist of? Full-blown or is this a hot plate and a little…?

Mr. Cleary: No, no there is a cook top, there’s a refrigerator and there is a microwave.

Mr. Hughes: Double sinks? 

Mr. Cleary: There is a sink in the room.

Mr. Hughes: Cabinets?

Mr. Cleary: Yeah, yeah.

Mr. Hughes: It is very hard for us to understand…

Mr. Cleary: Well I submitted some floor plans of the different style rooms so you folks would be able to see the different types and what I did is I picked two or three brands that are out there and submitted the different floor plans for you to look at so you could see the different components in the room.


Mr. Hughes: There is nothing in our package about the layout of the kitchen.

Chairperson Cardone: There is nothing in it.

Mr. McKelvey: No.

Ms. Gennarelli: We didn’t get kitchens.

Ms. Libolt: They were included I could pass this around.

Mr. Hughes: Well, tonight is not the night to present something like that.

Mr. Cleary: Well no, we sent it in sir. We included in the package.

Mr. Hughes: Betty?

Ms. Gennarelli: Not to the Zoning Board.

Mr. Manley: Did you submit it to the Planning Board? 

Mr. Cleary: No. 

Ms. Libolt: We submitted it to the Planning Board and to the Zoning Board.

Mr. Manley: If you submitted it to the Planning Board we wouldn’t have gotten it.

Ms. Libolt: I understand that but that was in the package that went to the Zoning Board. There was a site plan drawing and another three; it’s a studio, a one bedroom and a two bedroom.

Ms. Gennarelli: We did not get that.

Ms. Libolt: They look like this.

Ms. Gennarelli: I do not have anything like that. 

Mr. Cleary: The kitchen is a very small I would say less than 6-foot by 8-foot area. They pick a corner and basically convert it to a little kitchenette area for a guest. The guest level we are looking at is comparable to the Homewood across the street, which is more of the higher end of extended stay. 

Ms. Libolt: Do you want to see this? I don’t know if you want to see this just for illustrative for your purposes tonight.

Mr. Hughes: I believe that would be up to our Chairperson.

Chairperson Cardone: I think if you would submit it to our secretary and we’ll have a chance to look at it before the next meeting.

Mr. Hughes: Also I have to lean in the direction of our attorney’s advice and I don’t believe that this is an area variance. I believe this is a complete use variance especially if you are looking for 100%.

Mr. Cleary: What type of variance did the Planning Board say we needed since we were denied?

Mr. Hughes: What does State law say?

Mr. Cleary: We can only be governed by the governing body of a Planning Board at that time. I mean I don’t know what the State wants…I am not looking to get into an argument what I’m saying when we go to a Planning Board…

Mr. Hughes: Well I am not arguing, I am discussing. 

Mr. Cleary: …and they give us a denial.

Mr. Donovan: The Planning Board indicated, from memory I’ll find the letter, for the required variance.

Mr. Cleary: O.K. So, it didn’t dictate? 

Mr. Donovan: They didn’t say one way or another.

Mr. Cleary: All right.

Mr. Manley: Mr. Donovan, it’s my understanding that if the Code defines 25% kitchens and lists the different requirements for a hotel, they’re defining the hotel with that particular…with that set of criteria. So if you are deviating from the criteria, is what Mr. Hughes is saying correct that it would be more in line with being a use as opposed to an area variance?

Mr. Donovan: That’s the kind of a threshold issue that I raise because the definition of a hotel in the first instance as I said before allows for only a central kitchen. Then we have a provision that 185-27-D that talks about hotel and motel units shall not contain kitchen facilities of any type in more than 25% and in a particular hotel or motel complex. The inference being that they are permitted but to me it’s inconsistent and but it also as I said before raised the question in my mind when you go to 100% cooking kitchens…

Mr. Manley: You are changing the use?

Mr. Donovan: …you are changing the use, yes. You are changing the nature of the use.

Mr. Manley: Which, that makes sense.

Mr. Cleary: The use, I see what you’re saying, I do. But on the other hand we’re not changing use because it’s still going hotel use. A guest can come into the Ramada and stay for ten days and as much as they can stay in our hotel for ten days. I’ll re-file under whatever…

Mr. Donovan: Well, you don’t have an attorney with you tonight so be careful what you say because you may want to do that because the use variance is extraordinarily difficult to obtain. I think you may be wise to…it’ll be helpful to me if you could submit…layout your argument and brief your argument as to why you are an area variance and not a use variance. I mean I am prepared to do whatever is the right thing to do. It just seems to me that to go to 100% kitchen facilities changes the nature of a use. That’s why I raised the issue as to whether it’s a use variance application not an area variance application.  

Ms. Libolt: O.K. So you are looking for an argument as to why it’s area versus use?

Mr. Donovan: I think it would be helpful to me and to the Board.

Chairperson Cardone: Definitely.

Mr. Hughes: And to yourself as well.

Ms. Libolt: I believe its area and I think dimensionally you know if you look at the nature of what an area variance is versus a use variance clearly an area variance has to do with dimensional issues. We are talking about dimensional issues here, 25%. The underlying use is permitted. If you were saying you wanted to change this to assisted living facility and assisted living facilities weren’t permitted in this particular underlying zone that’s a use variance. The underlying use being a hotel is permitted we are asking for a dimensional change in the nature of the use.

Mr. Donovan: Tonight is not a law school exam. But the nature of a hotel is transient and if you have cooking facilities does it become an apartment for…I don’t know…I assume extended stay is an industry term. Extended stay could mean two years as opposed to a week. And, I think the Board needs something, I need something in writing that’s going to demonstrate what extended stay is and why you believe and I’m sure you have an attorney that’s going to say why this is an area variance not a use variance. I’m frankly leaning towards it being a use variance. Understand that that’s, before you make an application for a use variance, it’s a very different and difficult standard, different from your area variance.

Mr. Cleary: I have gone through a couple of these meetings in the northeast and one of the issues that has come up is the fact that there is a lot of towns and municipalities that had laws on the books of this exact nature and it was more so to prevent exactly what you were…

Mr. Hughes: New York State?

Mr. Cleary: New York State, Connecticut, I have done work all up the coast.

Mr. Hughes: We are working off of State law when you say northeast…if it’s not New York, it’s not New York.

Mr. Cleary: Well no but that is not a State law. That’s not a State law. It’s a Code in the…

Mr. Donovan: I think he is talking about the definition of a hotel.

Mr. Cleary: I am talking about the definition and what I’m getting at is I’ve had to go in and go to variance board hearings and what’s come about is the extended stay industry is only about 10, 12 years old as far as you folks would know. It’s about 15 years old, 20 years old when it first started. There’s a lot of laws on the books, as you know right now this is for $120, $130 a night rack rate for night stays. The laws in these other municipalities were generally drafted on the basis of taking old hotels that end up turning into weeklies and then you basically get a lot of homeless and/or indigent people staying in there and I understand where you are coming from but that was the explanations I’ve gotten back from some of the other municipalities of why the law is on there. We’re building a brand spanking new hotel that’s going to be, you know, Marriott or Hilton or Radisson or somebody that’s…there going to be a flag on there. It’s not…I can only say it’s going to be identical in use, nature and size and everything of that Homewood that is on that airport property its just that it won’t be a Homewood it will be another brand.

Ms. Libolt: And again I just want to…one more response it’s just the mere fact that you have a kitchenette in a hotel room doesn’t necessarily preclude other hotels in the Town of Newburgh and other areas of having transient guests and so forth so that’s certainly not reflective of extended stay hotels. I understand your concern but there’s nothing typically then from staying at a Radisson that doesn’t have kitchenettes. 

Mr. Cleary: Your typical client is an executive that’s relocating into the area if I gave you an analogy and he had to come for 7, 8 days with a family home…he would stay, come each week, there’s actually provisions for him in the store his luggage in the hotel so when he comes back the following week or the week after he has it still there. So it’s more set up for the corporate guest than it is a leisure and/or transient. 

Mr. Hughes: And the storage facility that you are talking about?

Mr. Cleary: A storage facility, little lockers in the hotel itself that they can put their shoes, their briefcase and stuff or stuff they just want to keep there so they don’t have to lug it back and forth.

Mr. Manley: I think one of the things getting back to use variance versus area variance to me I think the more that I ponder it I’m really in agreement with counsel that it really, to me, is leaning towards a use variance only in that you’re changing the use of the actual unit.

Mr. Cleary: From what to what?

Mr. Manley: If the unit has just a bed and a shower like a normal hotel or motel room and you introduce a kitchen to it you are changing how that unit is used. It’s now used not only as a living area but used as a dining area.

Mr. Cleary: Correct but 25% of the rooms is allowable now all you’re doing is expanding…

Mr. Manley: Under our existing Code, you are looking to expand that beyond what the Code is which now you are changing the use of the hotel from 25% to 100%.

Mr. Cleary: I am not going to argue with you on that but I’m saying we thought of it…we’re changing the quantity is simply how we did it because 25% is allowed.

Mr. Manley: When you think of area, you think of more size.

Mr. Cleary: Right, more rooms, more kitchens, that’s exactly how we thought of it, we weren’t changing the use.

Mr. Manley: You are not changing the size of the units. It’s going to be the same hotel room size you’re just introducing kitchens.

Ms. Libolt: But if 25% we not already permitted? I would understand the argument but since 25% is already permitted you’re saying that that particular use is permitted in that zone. A use variance is intended for a prescribed…

Mr. Manley: Right, but the Town has defined the use with hotels with kitchens as under 25%.

Mr. Libolt: Right.

Mr. Manley: When you go beyond 25% now you are changing the use of that hotel.

Mr. Cleary: To what?

Mr. Manley: To 100% because you’re going from 25% now the entire hotel is going to have 100% kitchens. So now you’ve changed the use of that hotel where its no longer being used mixed. It’s not mixed partially with kitchens and partially with…

Ms. Libolt: (inaudible)

Mr. Cleary: But it’s still the hotel use. 

Mr. Manley: Well, I understand you are making your case for it.

Mr. Cleary: I hear what you are saying; I’m not here to argue that.

Mr. Donovan: It would be helpful, I think, if you could show that 50% of the industry now has 100% of kitchen facilities or something along those lines as well as a legal argument.

Mr. Cleary: I submit that into you folks.

Mr. Donovan: It would be helpful to have a brief from your attorney also demonstrating why you are an area variance not a use variance.

Mr. Cleary: O.K.

Ms. Libolt: Are there any other questions or issues that we can…

Ms. Eaton: Why isn’t 25% enough?

Mr. Cleary: It was enough with the…we were putting a Holiday Inn a full service Holiday Inn over there and we held the license for almost two years and they took it from us. We have an Article 78. So that would have been fine that’s a full service hotel with you have some guest rooms…75% of the guest rooms wouldn’t have had it and 25% would have and we might not even put the 25 in there. This is a different hotel industry.

Ms. Eaton: Couldn’t you find another chain that would agree with the Holiday Inns? 

Mr. Cleary: Well there is no other full service flag I would bring into this area. It’s just a…that would be a business decision. I wouldn’t bring in another limited service. You’ve got a Comfort Inn, you’ve got a Ramada, you’ve got a Hampton Inn, you know, so we’re really trying to see what niche we are. We are definitely focusing on extended stay and this still might be three, four months out if we don’t get our appeal back here.

Mr. Hughes: You had spoke about a 12-acre parcel earlier and this is on 6.2 is the other one gone out of your possession?

Mr. Cleary: No. That one is approved and there’s no issues with that one. It’s a 60,000 sq. ft. warehouse that we sold to F. W. Webb Plumbing and they’re just waiting for the conclusion of the Article 78.         

Mr. Hughes: Who filed the 78?

Mr. Cleary: A guy named Wilbur Muir.

Mr. Hughes: M-U-I-R?

Mr. Cleary: I think it is, yes.

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing else.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anyone in the public who would like to comment? Please step up to the microphone and state your name and address.

Ms. Berson: Good evening, I am Marilyn Berson. I am attorney with Teahan and Constantino in Poughkeepsie. We’re actually the law firm that initiated the Article 78 proceeding challenging the Planning Board’s site plan approval. We represent the two named petitions, Wilbur Muir who lives approximately 1000 feet from the property and Michael Kane who lives in a 1-family residential property two doors away or 75-feet away. We only, two days ago, learned of the Public Hearing. I do have a letter that I would like to submit. I brought enough copies for the Board. If I can give it to the Secretary this evening?  

(Ms. Berson approached and distributed copies.)

Ms. Berson: And I would just like to address a couple of the issues that were raised and one of the first issues and the largest issue we raise is our contention that where the change that is being sought is to allow 100% of the rooms to have kitchen facilities that that is a use variance and not an area variance. So that the point raised by your attorney and as well as Board Members is a major point that we have raised. We have sighted case law for and in support of that contention. It no doubt is a very complicated area of the law but none the less as sighted in our argument and I’ve given the applicant a copy of our letter for them to respond to, it’s our position that number one as your counsel said there are inconsistencies in your Code however when the applicant is talking about making a change of the entire building to 100%, what we believe amounts to dwelling units what you’ve really changed to is an apartment building which is not permitted in the zone and I would ask that the Board review our letter since it does not appear that a decision will be made this evening just to raise some additional points. Even if ultimately the Board were to decide that this is an area variance there are five criteria that the applicant must meet in order to obtain the variance. And to assist the Board, the applicant must submit appropriate SEQRA documents. The applicant submitted a short form EAF. There was no information on it. This is part of a Type I project that was coordinated review by the Planning Board. This part of it should be part of the Type I Environmental Review so that a long form EAF should be required. We have concerns on behalf of our clients, particularly on behalf of Mr. Kane who lives within 75 feet of the property that we have no idea what venting is going to be put in, what effect there is going to be on air quality, on odors if 140 units are extended stay and cooking is going to be done in that many units on possibly a daily basis. The applicant, as I think the Board acknowledged, has said that this is not a substantial variance; a substantial variance is they’re really asking for 400 times what the Code presently requires. In terms of environmental and aesthetic effects, as we say in our letter, unless the Board has a complete environmental package you cannot make a determination as to whether there are or are not going to be impacts on the community but at a minimum there is great concern by our client with respect to odors that might be emanating from the premises. Finally, although it’s not determinative this is a self-created variance. The applicant bought the property with this zoning restriction in effect that is your classic textbook case of a self-created hardship. The application says it’s not self-created but when you buy the property subject to existing zoning and you’re asking for a variance that’s just a self-created hardship. So we believe it’s a use variance. We believe that that would be a very hard burden for this applicant to meet. Even if you determine it’s an area variance, you need better environmental studies by the applicant and we don’t believe that any of the criteria have been met to support the variance. So we would ask that the Board would consider the letter we’ve submitted this evening and I thank you for giving me the time.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Do we have any other comments? I’d like to read into the record the report from the Orange County Department of Planning.

The department has reviewed the materials submitted regarding the above referenced site plan in accordance with Section 239 l (L) and m (M) of the General Municipal Law and do not have any significant intercommunity or county-wide considerations to bring to your attention.

And the recommendation is Local Determination.

Mr. Cleary: Would I be able make one comment? Just as far as the…

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, please use the microphone? 

Mr. Cleary: Mr. Muir’s legal counsel stated that this is a self-created issue. This is not self-created. This is a…yeah, we bought the property with the existing zoning. We had plans. We had one sale. We were building a Holiday Inn and then it was Mr. Muir who decided to take us to an Article 78 for the past year and a half and in the process, they lost. They lost at the court and now they are going for an appeal. That was perfected last July and we are anticipating the answer…could be yesterday, could be tomorrow, it could be next month and we are in a position now where we took significant financial…we bought the property, we closed, we have a contract of sale with F.W. Webb which has a litany of ratifications due on timing and to say this is a self-inflicted hardship I very much disagree with that on the basis of that we wouldn’t be here if we were just putting our hotel up in accordance with the Code, the one we had planned two years ago. We are only here because of the lawsuit that they filed against us to prevent us from putting up that hotel.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you. Yes.

Ms. Berson: I am not going to respond to that but I would ask just that you leave the Public Hearing open because there were I believe diagrams that were submitted.

Chairperson Cardone: Right, we need to see those, that’s correct.  

Ms. Berson: And, we would like to see them and we would like to respond to any further comments that are made so I would just make that request. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. In fact I was just going to ask for a motion to that effect.

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Mr. Donovan: Now that motion is to keep the Public Hearing open and continue it to February 28. Just for the benefit of anyone from the public who is here for this this evening you will not get another notice. The adjournment tonight, adjourns it to…the Public Hearing is open to February 28 but you will not get another notice in the mail.

Mr. Cleary: The 28thor the 24th?

Chairperson Cardone: The 28th.

Mr. Donovan: 28th. 

Ms. Gennarelli: We’ll do a roll call?

Chairperson Cardone: Just one moment there is someone else that would like to speak.

Audience Member: I just wanted to ask you, since I came in late, where is this structure? Where is this hotel to be located?

Mr. Hughes: Corporate Drive, across the driveway from Grainger.

Chairperson Cardone:  On 17K.

Audience Member: Where the pond is?

Mr. Hughes: Behind the pond.

Audience Member: What’s the road? 

Ms. Drake: 17K and Corporate Boulevard.


Mr. McKelvey: Corporate Boulevard.

Mr. Hughes: The industrial park.

Audience Member: O.K. Thank you very much. Oh, in other words in the existing Northeast Industrial Park?

Mr. Hughes: That’s correct.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: Right behind the pond up by Route 17K.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me; if you’re going to speak, could you please…

Chairperson Cardone: You have to speak into the microphone because everything has to be recorded.

Audience Member: May I comment?

Chairperson Cardone: Please go up to the microphone; state your name and address.

Audience Member: Certainly.

Ms. Kissam: My name is Sandra Kissam I live at 1261 Union Avenue. I did some research last year into some of the legal actions that the Town was involved with and I remember now that there was an action against I believe there was an action against this hotel and apparently this attorney is involved because it was a change of, it was a departure from the EIS for the Northeast Business Park. Am I correct? Or it was asserted that it was? Am I correct? O.K. Thank you. I really feel that it is certainly a departure from the original intention of the reason for that creation of that commercial facility, the Northeast Business Park and its my impression and my feeling that the resident that brought this case on the business of the facility not having been a part of that environmental impact study and considered at that time has a very valid point. And I certainly if I were in his position would not want to be faced with such a use change next to my immediate residence so I just wanted to say that. Thank you very much.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. We have a motion on the floor and a second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: This will be held open until February the 28th at 7:00 o’clock.

Ms. Gennarelli: Ms. Libolt do you have those layouts for the rooms for us?

Ms. Libolt: I will have to get them to you at a later time.

(Time Noted – 7:36 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 24, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:36 PM) 


MICHAEL GLASS, SR. & DIANE DAVIS

270 FOSTERTOWN ROAD, NBGH 








(20-1-23.22) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the maximum allowed square footage for accessory structures and the maximum allowed storage of four (4) vehicles to erect a 24’ x 36’ pole barn (accessory structure). 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Michael Glass, Sr. and Diane Davis, 270 Fostertown Road.

Mr. Glass: Michael Glass Sr., 270 Fostertown Road.

Chairperson Cardone: Just a moment. 

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on January 15th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on January 16th. The applicant sent out twenty-six registered letters, nineteen were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Now you can start.

Mr. Glass: Sorry.

Ms. Gennarelli: That’s O.K., thank you.

Mr. Glass: Michael Glass Sr., 270 Fostertown Road, we are requesting a variance to allow a pole barn of 24 x 36 to be built, an area variance.

Chairperson Cardone: You have a number of other structures on the property could you please go through the usage for those structures?

Mr. Glass: There is one of those garages that they deliver; it’s 12 x 24. There is also a run-in shed, for the horse that we have, which is 10 x 20. We have a 24 x 36…x 32, excuse me, barn for the animals. We had three horses at one time and we have a variance for four. And there is a 12 x 10 shed that’s been on the property, it used to be the summer kitchen and that’s been on the property for approximately 175 years, which is also included into that square footage. 

Chairperson Cardone: The variance that you are requesting is quite substantial, 124% over the total maximum that’s allowable. Is there any way that some of these other structures could be removed?

Mr. Glass: No, they are all being used. The running shed for the horse is in the paddock. The barn is naturally used for the animals and storage of the feed and everything for animals and the garage is totally full. I have a motorcycle that’s in there, I have a…I just ran out of room. The reason I want the garage is I work on…I have a hobby with old cars, I have a 1964 truck that I would like to be able to work inside. There is no area that I can actually work other than the driveway right now.

Chairperson Cardone: Also the maximum allowable storage is four vehicles and with this structure it would increase to six vehicles. Is that correct? 

Mr. Glass: No.

Mr. Hughes: What’s the number?

Mr. Glass: The number for what, sir?

Mr. Hughes: Vehicles.

Chairperson Cardone: Vehicles.

Mr. Glass: Well according to this its four vehicles.

Mr. Hughes: No, how many do you have?

Mr. Glass: How many do I have? I have a 1961 Ranchero, I have 1964 Ford pickup and regular vehicles that I have, is three. So that’s a total of five.

Mr. Hughes: Your request is for 2, 240 feet and the Town Code allows a maximum of 1000. You are 1240 over with all of the out structures that you have and I understand the complexity of handling animals and the need for space and stuff. But, as our Chairperson suggested, it is 124% over. I have some other questions.

Mr. Glass: I don’t understand 124% over.

Mr. Hughes: Well you’re allowed 1000 sq. ft.

Mr. Glass: 1000 sq. ft., correct.

Mr. Hughes: You are 1240 sq. ft. over with your request.

Mr. McKelvey: All these other structures count.

Chairperson Cardone: Your total would be 2240.

Mr. Glass: Oh, right.

Mr. Hughes: This property in the back is yours as well?

Mr. Glass: Yes, actually we have 5.8 acres, almost 6 acres, 5.8.

Mr. Hughes: Subject to subdivision?

Mr. Glass: Pardon me?

Mr. Hughes: Subject to subdivision?

Mr. Glass: I put in one time to have it subdivided and never followed through with it and at that point in time all I wanted to do is a small subdivision of four parcels but I have no intentions of four parcels in the future.

Mr. Hughes: I see. The problem that you are faced is just the concentrations that you have in this area here and the amount of square footage over. If it was over the whole property you would still be double with your request. It’s a difficult thing. Does the Building Department have anything?

Chairperson Cardone: Excuse me. Were there Building Permits for all of the structures that are on the property right now?

Mr. Mattina: Yes, everything is legal.

Mr. Hughes: Most of the other stuff is pretty old, pre-existing non-conforming?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. McKelvey: On this one item on here it says, allowance is 1000 sq ft and the existing is 1370 sq ft.

Ms. Drake: Shouldn’t have variances be required for the other…?

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, Joe, could you use the microphone please? Thank you. 

Mr. Mattina: Joe Mattina, Code Compliance, the 12 x 24 last shed issued was issued in the mid 80’s and it wasn’t taken into consideration, the 1000 sq ft or the formulas.

Mr. Glass: No, excuse me, what wasn’t taken into consideration was the 12 x 10 shed or the summer kitchen which is 175 years old and then that was added in to the 1000 sq ft. 

Mr. Mattina: Right, the four existing structures do have existing C.O.’s at one time or the other.

Ms. Drake: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: But the capacity for vehicles would be six, is that correct?

Joe?

Mr. Mattina: Well you can work any barn area and you can get up to eight, if you wanted to. Once you get over four, over four is what matters. You can reconfigure…

Chairperson Cardone: Right. So, it is over four is what I am stating?

Mr. Mattina: Yes, the new one alone would fit four, there is a 12 x 24, there is five right there so, you know, they are over the threshold at that point.

Ms. Eaton: As you enter this property 

Mr. Glass: Might the…excuse me. Maam?

Ms. Eaton: As you enter this property off of Fostertown Road…

Mr. Glass: Yes.

Ms. Eaton: …is your main dwelling on the left?

Mr. Glass: On the left hand side as you go in…the driveway is 213 feet long and then it becomes…it’s a flag lot.

Ms. Eaton: And you have a macadam driveway to your house? 

Mr. Glass: Yes.

Ms. Eaton: And your house is fenced in, from this property? I was a little confused when I went there as to which house was yours.

Mr. Glass: It’s the on the right hand…on the left hand side. Excuse me. It’s a little home with a fenced in yard for the dogs.

Ms. Eaton: O.K. Thank you.

Mr. Glass: You’re welcome.

Chairperson Cardone: I think the fence gave the appearance that it was a separate lot, I think that’s what she was referring to.

Mr. Glass: Pardon?

Chairperson Cardone: The fence gave the appearance that it was a separate lot that’s what she was referring to.

Mr. Glass: Oh, no. It runs back like 800 feet once you go down the driveway.

Chairperson Cardone: With a very rough driveway.

Mr. Glass: Rough? Yes. That to will change hopefully.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions from the Board? Do we have any other questions or comments from the public? If not, I would entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion we close the Public Hearing.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Glass: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:40 PM)

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 24, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 10:55 PM)

MICHAEL GLASS, SR. & DIANE DAVIS

270 FOSTERTOWN ROAD, NBGH 








(20-1-23.22) R-2 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the maximum allowed square footage for accessory structures and the maximum allowed storage of four (4) vehicles to erect a 24’ x 36’ pole barn (accessory structure). 

Chairperson Cardone: The Board is resuming its regular meeting. On our first application of Michael Glass, Sr. and Diane Davis at 270 Fostertown Road seeking area variances for the maximum allowed square footage for accessory structures and the maximum allowed storage of four (4) vehicles to erect a 24’ x 36’ pole barn (accessory structure). This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application?

Mr. Manley: It’s a fairly large coverage area that size property even though it is split up but there’s a lot of acreage but the back acreage the applicant was a little evasive as to what the plans were for the back acreage if that get subdivided. The request is extremely substantial based on our current Codes.

Mr. Hughes: Especially for a residential installation, if it was a horse farm or something else might be a different story even with the full acreage it’s way over.

Ms. Drake: That and there is no consideration to removing anything else.

Chairperson Cardone: Also I’d like to read the report from the County, the conclusion in this case, the proposed action to expand the existing residence will not have any impact on State or County facilities nor does it have any inter-municipal concerns, although we note that the alleged difficulty appears to have been self-created.      

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval on this application?

No Response. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for disapproval on this application?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to deny the application.

Mr. McKelvey: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The motion for disapproval is carried.

(Time Noted – 11:00 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 24, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:40 PM) 


ROBERT SISCO JR. & SARA DEFREITAS 
56 TAFT AVENUE, NBGH








(73-6-27) R-3

Applicant is seeking area variances for the lot area, lot width and front yard setback to build a new single-family residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Robert Sisco and Sara Defreitas, 56 Taft Avenue.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on January 15th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on January 16th. The applicant sent out thirty    registered letters, twenty-one were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Please identify yourself and you may begin.

Mr. Sisco: Good evening, my name if Robert Sisco Jr.  I’m applying for an area variance, lot area, lot width and the front yard setback to build a single-family residence on my property.

Mr. Manley: Mr. Sisco do you have a plot plan or plans for the house that you are going to be putting on the property or you are proposing to put on the property?

Mr. Sisco: Yes, I submitted them.

Mr. Manley: The actual size of the house?

Mr. Sisco: Yes, it’s all on there. 

Chairperson Cardone: The Board Members did not have that in their packets so we need to see that.

(Ms. Gennarelli showed house building plans from the Building Permit application to Board Members)

Ms. Drake: How many bedrooms are proposed in the house?

Mr. Sisco: Four bedrooms.

Ms. Drake: Are you on Town water and sewer there?

Mr. Sisco: Yes. 

Chairperson Cardone: How long have you been living in the house that is there presently?

Mr. Sisco: Three years.

Chairperson Cardone: Three years.

Ms. Eaton: Do you intend to remove the mobile home that’s there and the sheds that are on the property?

Mr. Sisco: Yes and we also going to rip up all the blacktop that we put down.

Mr. Hughes: What do you plan to do for off street parking?

Mr. Sisco: There should be a driveway proposed on there.

Mr. Hughes: We see a paved drive here but it’s on the old plan. How many cars do you make provision for?

Mr. Sisco: Two.

Mr. Hughes: And you have four bedrooms?  

Mr. Sisco: Yes. 

Ms. Eaton: Is there a garage with the house?

Mr. Sisco: No.

Ms. Eaton: No.

Mr. Hughes: And you say you are presently on Town water and sewer?

Mr. Sisco: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: There are two sheds on the property would they be removed?

Mr. Sisco: Yes.

Ms. Eaton: What are the dimensions of the house? 28 x 33?

Mr. Sisco: Yes.

Mr. Manley: So the home is going to be approximately 1850 total square feet on a 6000 sq ft parcel?

Mr. Sisco: Yes that was the smallest home that we could find. It is a narrow lot but most of the lots around the area are similar in size. 

Ms. Drake: Is there a reason that there has to be four bedrooms?

Mr. Sisco: I have three children.

Ms. Drake: Did you own the house before you living there? Did you own the property before started living there or you’ve only owned three years?

Mr. Sisco: We have only owned it for three years.

Mr. Hughes: So you have a minimum requirement of 12,500 sq ft and you only have 6000 sq ft on the total lot. The lot width is supposed to be a minimum of 85 and you only have 60 and the front yard is supposed to be at least 40 ft and you’re asking to do it with 24. Everything else fits but I don’t see how you are going to get all that parking on there especially when your children get older and start driving cars. Where are you going to park them all?

Mr. Sisco: Hopefully they won’t be still staying there when that happens.

Mr. Hughes: You are getting them out of the house then, good man. I have nothing else. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any other questions from the Board? Any other questions or comments from the public? Mr. Mattina?

Mr. Mattina: I have met with Mr. Sisco before we have demo permits for the trailers and stuff which we won’t issue until approval is, approved or not here. We discussed taking up the blacktop on the side so he is under surface and building coverage and with removal of the two sheds he makes it by four feet, as long as the sheds and the asphalt are removed. 

Mr. Hughes: Do you understand what you are constricted to?

Mr. Sisco: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: Thank you Joe. I have nothing else.

Chairperson Cardone: Then I would entertain a motion to close the Public Hearing?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to close the Public Hearing.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Sisco: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 7:46 PM)

---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 24, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 11:00 PM)

ROBERT SISCO JR. & SARA DEFREITAS 
56 TAFT AVENUE, NBGH








(73-6-27) R-3

Applicant is seeking area variances for the lot area, lot width and front yard setback to build a new single-family residence. 

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Robert Sisco, Jr. and Sara Defreitas at 56 Taft Avenue seeking area variances for the lot area, lot width and front yard setback to build a new single-family residence. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: I have a little bit of a question that I would like to present to the Building Department. Being that there’s a reconfiguration and a removal of a home, the off street parking deal kicks in because it’s a new residence?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: And I would like for you guys to oversee this carefully to make sure because there is such a reduction, there’s only 6000 sq ft there on the lot. So its about half the size that’s required however there is water and sewer there so in view of that…

Ms. Eaton: They are removing the sheds and the black top.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Hughes:  They are removing everything and they’re doing the driveway over.

Mr. McKelvey: Plus there’s a lot of other properties that small on the street. It’s certainly going to be an improvement of the property. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for approval on this application? 

Mr. Hughes: So moved.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

(Time Noted – 11:01 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 24, 2008              (Time Noted – 7:46 PM) 


FAJILATUN HUDA


172 BROOKSIDE FARMS ROAD, NBGH






(97-1-15)  IB ZONE 

Applicant is seeking a use variance for discontinuance of permitted use of 1-family residence in an IB zone to do interior alterations and repairs of house. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Fajilatun Huda, 172 Brookside Farms Road.

Ms. Gennarelli: The Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on January 15th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on January 16th. The applicant sent out ten   registered letters, eight were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.  


Mr. Manley: Madam Chair.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes? 

Mr. Manley: I may have a conflict with this particular case so I think it would be best if I recuse myself on this case.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you Mr. Manley. Please identify yourself you may begin.

Mr. Bloom: Thank you Madam Chair. My name is Dan Bloom and I represent the applicant Ms. Huda. This has been announced as an application for a use variance. The specific background is my client owns or I should say recently purchased in 2006 what my client believed to be a 1-family residence. It was purchased at a public sale through HUD. It was foreclosed property. It had been used as a residence and sold over four times prior to that time, however, although my client had an attorney represent it at the time when they purchased the order of title insurance, the title insurance policy did not reveal, it wouldn’t necessarily reveal the fact that it was…it had lost its preexisting non-conforming use and was now considered to be in the IB zone and therefore for commercial purposes only. My client only discovered that after he purchased the property, applied for a Building Permit to renovate the property so he could move into it. My client at the time was living and still is residing in New Jersey and had purchased it so he could come up here within 13 miles of IBM where he works and not have a 140 mile round trip which he still has to this day. The end result was that he purchased the property, he now owns the property, has a mortgage on the property and has been paying approximately $3500 a month between taxes and his mortgage ever since he purchased it and he can’t do anything with it. I have exhibits here, I’ll respectfully hand up, and I believe submitted with the application, indicating that there was no prior knowledge on his part and could not be. It was sold; the appraisal that HUD gave him at the time indicated that it was a 1-family residence, the contract referred to 1-family residence, the closing document referred to 1-family residence. The neighborhood is basically mostly residential. There some approximately 25, 20 to 25% is interchange business but it’s a small pocket of existing residences that remain non-conforming uses to this day. And so what we are submitting to the Board is that if the Board finds favorably on behalf of my client it will not change the character of the neighborhood. It will still look like a residential, which it looks like at the present time. I have photographs that I’ll respectfully submit to the Secretary when I am complete with the presentation, which are photographs of the surrounding buildings. And again, 60-70% are all residential. So it wouldn’t change the character of the neighborhood if application is granted. With the Boards permission, I’d like to respectfully call to the microphone Eldred Carhart, a certified New York State Appraiser, that we retained for the purpose of doing an analysis of the property so as to present this Board with what we respectfully submit will be an economic justification for the position which I submit is that my client cannot under the circumstances obtain a reasonable return for his investment. I leave it up to the Certified Appraiser to go into more detail but in a nutshell the property purchased as a residence is on such a small lot it has not appeal for anything other than residential use. It’s so far from the main traffic area it has no appeal for retail purposes. In other words, for any of the permitted uses in the zone it really has no market value. And for that purpose, Madam Chair, I respectfully request permission to have Mr. Carhart address the Board at this time.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. Please use the microphone and the microphone does come off the stand if anyone feels freer to walk around with it.

Mr. Carhart: I have the testimony already written out, may I give you a copy?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, please.

Mr. Carhart: Thank you. Good evening, my name is Eldred Carhart. I am a Certified General Appraiser of the State of New York and my qualifications are listed in the handout that I just gave you. I don’t want to read this presentation to you but I would like to summarize if that’s O.K.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Carhart: The property is at 172 Brookside Farm Road, it’s located in an IB zone and it consists of an older 2-story building, built in 1900. It has a lot that has 65 x 232 feet, about .35 acres and it contains a total of about 1812 sq ft. Mr. Bloom has already explained that had been vacant at the time it that it was sold. It was sold four times previous to when Mr. Huda bought it and it was for $103,600. The neighborhood consists of that small area which is south of Interstate-84, east of Passaic Creek, west of Passaic Creek excuse me, east of Greenhouse apartments formerly Colonial Knolls at North of Stewart Gardeners Development   It contains 14 properties altogether. It’s mixed in used. There are 14 properties that surround the subject and if you would refer to the tax map which I have colored in…on the back, you’ll see that I have outlined the properties that are being used currently, in green, as residential one, two or three family houses. Those are residential uses. The area in yellow is…there are four parcels and these are unimproved land. Then there are two parcels that are shown in blue that are mixed use properties. They are classified as 482 tax codes and so they are mixed use and the orange ones, the burnt color of orange I guess it would be those, two are industrial properties. Those are a warehouse building. These are the properties that surround the subject. The uses that are permitted by right in the IB zone are municipal buildings, and existing single family, two family houses on different size lots depending on whether they have water and sewer. And these are the only permitted uses in the zone, is permitted by right. Now there are eight uses permitted with Planning Board review and these consist of mini-malls, shopping centers, individual retail stores, theatres, offices for business research and professional use, restaurant and fast food, research laboratories and manufacturing. Now the lot sizes, the minimum lot sizes for the zone are 40,000 sq ft for a minimum lot size and it goes up to 5 acres depending upon what use the property would be put to. So none of the permitted uses subject to Planning Board approval would even qualify for minimum lot size. The problems of use could be overcome except there is a lack of demand for these particular properties. When I say particular properties I am talking about the properties that could be used for office space, laboratories, professional offices. There is no demand for this particular neighborhood, if you remember what the neighborhood looks like, it’s kind of rural…it’s pushed off into a little corner of Brookside Farm Road and it really doesn’t have any demand for office space of any kind or retail. Now the hardship was not self-created, Mr. Alam did not create the situation as Dan Bloom has expressed and the granting of the variance would not negatively affect any of the surrounding properties…the value of those properties that is. There would be no negative effect on the surrounding properties and that’s basically my testimony that you have in front of you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you Mr. Carhart.

Mr. Bloom: May I present to the Board at this time a petition signed by some of the neighbors of my client in support of the application?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Bloom: Thank you and may I simultaneously deliver extra photocopies, photos of the surrounding neighborhood, neighboring properties, please?

Mr. McKelvey: Just so you understand, we’ve all been to the property. 

Mr. Bloom: Thank you very much. Then you have an appreciation of it.

Chairperson Cardone: I’ll just read the petition in to the record.

Mr. Bloom: Thank you very much.

Chairperson Cardone: This petition is presented to the Town of Newburgh Zoning Board of Appeals regarding Fajilatun Huda and J. Alam and premises owned by them, located at 172 Brookside Farm Road, Newburgh, New York (Section 97 Block 1 Lot 15-Tax Map Town of Newburgh). The undersigned property owners and neighbors hereby respectfully urge the Zoning Board of Appeals to act favorably upon the Application of Ms. Huda and Mr. Alam, wherein they seek a Use Variance to utilize the real property with improvements thereon located at 172 Brookside Farm Road as a one-family residence:  signed by, 

Eugene Hamilton, 170 Brookside Farm Road, Kim Monaghan, 164 Brookside Farm Road, Ella Winter, 162 Brookside Farm Road, Richard Geikes, 20 Bruce St, Robert Bowman, 17 Bruce St, Alice Bowman, 17 Bruce St, Barbara Malo, 13 Bruce St, Manuel Furmato, 25 Hob St, Arnold Candela Sr, 18 Hob St, Darren Winston, 8 Bruce St, Sallie L Hill, 5 Hill St, Robert C Wells, 166 Brookside Farm Rd. 

And, I’d also like to read into the record the report from the Orange County Department of Planning 

Project Summary: The applicant owns a structure in the Interchange Business zone that was used as single-family residence at the time the zoning code was adopted and therefore was permitted to exist as a pre-existing non-conforming use. The residence has now been unoccupied for more than two years and the permitted use of the structure, as a residence has expired. The applicant is now requesting permission to reinstate the residential use in the existing structure. In determining whether to grant the requested use variance consideration should be given to the added benefit afforded the applicant if the use variance is granted versus the potential detriment to the health, safety and welfare of the community or neighborhood by such an approval. And the conclusion: In this case, the proposed action to use the existing structure as a residence will not have any impact on State or County facilities nor does it cause any inter-municipal concerns and they recommend - Local Determination. 

Any questions or comments from the Board?

Mr. Hughes: Yes, I don’t know it might be more of a statement than it is a question. If my memory serves me correctly, this is the third time this same project has been brought before us and I don’t entirely agree with Mr. Bloom and the representations that were made that this was not a self-created hardship which I believe a determine has been made prior to this meeting. I don’t know if Mr. Bloom is aware that you are I think the second attorney that was involved with this proceeding. The applicant came before us by himself to begin with, again with another attorney and now you and I don’t know where the applicant thinks they’re taking it but we’ve been through this thing twice before. I don’t agree that the hardship wasn’t self-created. It is the responsibility of a purchaser to understand all of the laws pertaining to this, one of the big things that I believe it was shot down before was because of the lack of parking and access to the property without parking vehicles out in a roadway. And like one of my colleagues has indicated we’ve all been out to the site and thoroughly inspected entirely around said parcel. Now the photographs that were displayed tonight I believe we should have had more time to look at them and consider them but none of the photographs indicate to me where there is any access to that property for parking or access, even ambulatory access and I would like to know what you think about my statements.

Mr. Bloom: I don’t disagree with them. No. It’s an accurate statement what you just made as far as I know. I was not aware of the representation by my client at a second meeting with an attorney. I was only aware of the presentation he originally made by himself. 

Mr. Hughes: I want to be fair with you.

Mr. Bloom: However, I was not aware of the second application. Be that as it may, and I don’t disagree with your statement concerning access to the property and the parking issue but I would respectfully submit that its use as a residence would be less intrusive upon the traffic patterns than if it would be now determined to have to be used for commercial purposes. 

Mr. Hughes: But the points that you have to prove to this Board to facilitate such a project I don’t think are being met here for several reasons. Resale of the property is one of the considerations for a return on the money; if he can’t do this and he’s got you say $103,000 in it, the possibility to sell it to an adjacent property owner or another use for something other than a residential property I don’t see how anything can be done here to provide parking and safety and not have cars parked out in the middle of a thoroughfare.

Chairperson Cardone: I just want to make one correction, Mr. Hughes, he was not represented by an attorney it was a paralegal.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, I misspoke then.

Chairperson Cardone: I just checked the minutes to be sure.

Mr. Hughes: I’m sorry. I just want to be fair with you Mr. Bloom.

Mr. Bloom: Sure, I appreciate that, thank you. My client just indicates that he believes that there’s one parking space on the premises. 

Mr. Hughes: How would you get to it?

(Inaudible)

Chairperson Cardone: If you would please go up to the microphone and I know there is someone in the audience who would like to speak but first we need to get the questions from the Board and then I will call on you.

Mr. Alam (Huda): There is one parking space so far I’ve seen on the map, on the plot.

Mr. Hughes: Where?

Mr. Alam (Huda): I believe I, it is submitted that plan also, that one car can park there.

Mr. Hughes: Would you show me where or how you could get to that? Here’s your map.

Mr. Alam (Huda): Yes I can show you.

Mr. Alam (Huda) approached the Board.

Mr. Alam (Huda): Right here.

Mr. Hughes: I mean the photographs clearly show that there’s a building about three feet away from the north side of the property and where the stonewall that goes around the property goes back to the adjacent structure. It appears as though that wall is on another person’s property. 

(Inaudible)

Mr. Hughes: I am sorry I didn’t hear you.

(Inaudible)

Mr. McKelvey: Didn’t you state when you were here before that if you went around the corner there was a…

Mr. Alam (Huda): Yes; now there is a boat there that my neighbor put that board (boat) there because I am not using this, so. There is the parking.

Chairperson Cardone: But is there the ability to park a car around the corner if the board (boat) is removed? 

Mr. Alam (Huda): Yes, there is parking; even on the map it’s there, on the plan. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Is it on the survey? I have that here.

Mr. Alam: Yes. It’s on the survey.

Mr. Bloom: It’s on the survey.

Mr. Hughes: Really, there is your property line over here.

Mr. Alam (Huda): I think it shows there the parking.

Mr. Hughes: Well, we’ve seen that also and we have been out to the site. It didn’t appear as though it was on your property.

Mr. Alam (Huda): Because there is a boat. Now somebody put their boat so that’s why you can’t …

Mr. Donovan: I just want make sure so the record is accurate, are you referring to what’s depicted on the survey as a gravel drive? Is that where you are indicating where your parking area is?

Mr. Alam (Huda): Yes, that’s correct.

Mr. Donovan: So the area that’s indicated as a gravel drive is where your…

Mr. Alam (Huda): Yes, there was the parking, they used to use as parking space. 

Mr. Donovan: But that’s what you are saying you would park your car?

Mr. Alam (Huda): Yes, but now there was a boat that’s why when I think you visited no one could see that.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Donovan: May I ask, Mr. Bloom, this indicates at least on this survey it’s a private road, limits undefined? I don’t know if you have the opportunity to investigate Mr. Hughes has indicated, raising the question whether or not they have the right to use that to get in and out. Do you know the answer to that?

Mr. Bloom: I don’t

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Bloom: I don’t. But except to indicate that there was a mortgage closing, there was title insurance and the insured ingress and egress that I know.

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: From the street?

Mr. Bloom: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Well, I mean that’s in front of the house.

Mr. Bloom: No.

Mr. Donovan: No.

Mr. Bloom: Into the property.

Mr. Donovan: Unless the title report is going to indicate that it does not insure, if it insures access it insures to the nearest public street. So, it would insure access over this private drive to the public street if what Mr. Bloom is saying is accurate. And, I have no reason to doubt him that is for sure.

Mr. Hughes: Well no, I am not arguing, I am discussing here. I can’t see it with both sides of the story with what’s going on here. With the tax maps that I looked at from the assessor’s office and the map that you presented here there is a discrepancy in the corner, in front of the barn that’s to the south of his building. It has a big garage door on the front, where that boat is parked.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you speak…

Chairperson Cardone: Could you speak into the microphone?

Ms. Gennarelli: …into the microphone otherwise it won’t pick up?

Mr. Bloom: Respectfully, Mr. Hughes, we would defer to the survey over the tax map. Always.

Mr. Hughes: Well we need to have a determination on that.

Mr. Bloom: Sure.

Ms. Drake: Is it a board or a boat?

Mr. Hughes: A boat.

Ms. Drake: A boat, so the pictures actually showed a boat so that maybe with the pictures… 

Mr. Hughes: What I am suggesting here, Dan, is where it shows that corner where the boat is parked now?

Mr. Bloom: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: One diagram shows a jut that comes out and another one shows a straight line and it’s fifteen, twenty feet difference.

Mr. Bloom: If the Board wishes, I’d be happy to get an opinion letter from the title company that insured the access.

Chairperson Cardone: What is the feeling of the Board on this?

Ms. Drake: I didn’t hear the question.

Mr. Hughes: I need some more information, I think. We’ve been through this twice before and I don’t know how you got involved and where we are at now but…

Chairperson Cardone: I think one of the main issues was the financial hardship, last time.

Mr. Hughes: But the hardship was self-created, it’s the applicants responsibility to know what you can do there before you purchase the property and that’s one of the points that have to be met.

Mr. McKelvey: I know we asked for it when the paralegal was here.

Mr. Hughes: (to Mr. Alam (Huda)) That’s the spot there?

Mr. Alam (Huda): Yes sir, there is the parking.

Mr. Hughes: Yes. The stuff that I looked at doesn’t show that there’s a driveway there maybe I’m wrong. 

Mr. Donovan: I think the answer to your question is, yes I think it would be helpful.

Mr. Bloom: Very well. I will provide that.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have any questions or comments from the public? Yes, please step up to the microphone and state your name and address.

Mr. Griffin: Good evening. My name is David Griffin, I reside 210 Sunset Cove Road and I represent the properties of 174 and 176 Brookside Farm Road. One thing that was said that there were several building surrounding this property but actually there’s only five parcels and I’d like to give this to the Board to show where I am as related to…

Ms. Gennarelli: You have to speak into the microphone. It does come off.

Chairperson Cardone: You can take it with you.

Mr. Griffin: This is a tax map, I picked it up from the Town, the shaded part is where my parcels are and there is no access to that property and that’s one of the reasons why it’s been sold four times in the past years. What they say is a driveway, I have pictures here that shows that there was a wall there that had been taken down and I have constantly had either at truck, a boat, a trailer there so it hasn’t been accessible. I have had that building for twenty-five years. I do have pictures here of the property, of the characteristics of the property and an overview of both sides of the boat, the side of my property and how it is adjacent to Mr. Huda’s property. So if I could leave that with the Board and have them look at it at their convenience?

Chairperson Cardone: We have all been out to the property so we are very familiar. We have been out there several times.

Mr. Griffin: O.K. Really? But there is no access to that property. And if you look at where that boat is as compared to the front door of my property I mean that’s a driveway so, that’s not a road. 

Mr. Maher: I have a question for Mr. Bloom. My question is, on the survey provided you are showing a road known as Brookside Farms Road and on Mr. Griffin’s submission here he shows it as being part of his parcel, so is it in fact part of the Town Road or a private road owned by Mr. Griffin? 

Mr. Bloom: I can’t answer that question, sir, without consulting with the title company and the surveyor involved and what I would suggest to the Board is, if the Board is amenable to it, perhaps an adjournment of this Public Hearing for a sufficient period of time for me to get the surveyor back out into the field and to get that survey to the title company so I can get an opinion on the survey perhaps that can resolve these questions once and for all. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do you think that could be done by the next meeting, which is February the 28th, or would you be looking at the March? 

Mr. Bloom: I’d be more comfortable with a two month adjournment so I could get the survey completed, staked and then to the title company and then get an opinion letter from the title company that I could present to the Board.

Ms. Gennarelli: That would be March 27th.

Mr. Bloom: I am sure I could accomplish it in that period of time.

Mr. Hughes: Can we extend the 62-day time…?

Chairperson Cardone: The days do not start counting until we close the Public Hearing. 

Mr. Hughes: So we leave the Public Hearing open?

Chairperson Cardone: My suggestion is for a motion to leave the Public Hearing open until March 27th.   

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion to leave the Public Hearing open until till March 27th so that Mr. Bloom could provide that information to us.

Mr. McKelvey: And I’ll second that motion.

Mr. Hughes: Counsel, do we have any other caveats we should be advising the applicant about? There seems to be a difference of opinion here about access. 

Mr. Donovan: Well that’s what is going to be resolved in two months.

Mr. Hughes: Yes, so is there anything else besides that limited access, if there is any at all?

Mr. Donovan: Well, the other issues, I mean there are other issues but we’ve discussed those other issues this evening. There’s the proof of the financial hardship which needed to be submitted, character of the neighborhood which there has been testimony on so I think that the other requirements for the use variance have been addressed by the applicant.

Mr. Hughes: And is all of this moot because we don’t have a self-created hardship? I don’t understand where we are going with this.

Mr. Donovan: Well that’s the issue that the Board will ultimately have to decide because as you well know and are reminding me to say if it’s a self-created hardship in the nature of a use variance that’s an absolute bar to the issuance of the use variance. But the applicant has made their argument as to why it’s not self-created and now it’s got to be up to the Board to determine whether they sustained their burden of proof or not.

Mr. Hughes: Everyone understands?

Mr. Bloom: Understood sir, correct.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

                                  James Manley: Recuse

Mr. Bloom: Thank you very much, ladies and gentlemen.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

(Time Noted – 8:19 PM)
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Applicant is seeking area variances for the amount of total square footage allowed for signage and the limitation of the number of pylon and freestanding signs. 

Chairperson Cardone: Our next application is WB Interchange Associates and I am going to read a statement before we begin. Before we begin let me be clear that the focus of the Zoning Board of Appeals this evening is narrow. The applicant appears before our Board as a result of a referral from the Town Planning Board. The Planning Board has made their referral for very specific issues. By law our jurisdiction is limited to a review of only those issues, which require this applicant to appear before us. Specifically the applicant relief from the maximum square footage requirements imposed by the Town’s sign ordinance and further seeks certain area variances to allow their property to be sub-divided. Please bear in mind that applicant’s proposal has already received preliminary site plan approval from Planning Board. This Board cannot change, modify or undo anything that has already been done at the Planning Board. Moreover the purpose of this Public Hearing is not to review or revisit what has been done before the Planning Board. This hearing is designed to hear your comments on the specific issues before this Board only. We invite any comments or suggestions you may have regarding the variances requested by the applicant. This hearing is not intended to hear from you regarding the site plan which has already been approved nor is it intended to illicit comments regarding the potential environmental impacts of this project for there has already been a full environmental review of this project as required by the State Environmental Quality Review Act. The review is conducted by the Planning Board as the lead agency for this project therefore to the extent that you wish to raise environmental issues or to the extent that you wish to raise issues regarding the already approved site plan your comments will be out of order. This hearing is intended to assist the Board in identifying the issues that need to be addressed before the Board renders a decision on the variances requested. With that introduction and orientation let me now tell you that the Board wants to hear your comments regarding the variances requested. This hearing is designed to receive your comments. The Board will listen to you carefully however there should be and there must be order to these proceedings. In a moment, the applicants’ consultants will outline the variances they have requested, the Board Members will then have the opportunity to question the applicant and the representatives. The Board will then turn to you for comment. The Board will listen to your comments and concerns and it will try to clarify matters that may be confusing to you but the Board cannot answer any lengthy questions. That task is to learn from you what the Board might not have yet considered therefore we ask you not to ask questions but rather to raise issues. The Board will consider all of your comments and questions. One last issue, because the Planning Board is the lead agency for the SEQRA review of the project our Board will not be in a position to make any decision on this application this evening. The Planning Board must account for the proposal being submitted this evening and its capacity as lead agency before this Board can act. We have a large crowd here and I’m sure that many of you wish to speak. In order to hear from everyone I am going to ask you as I requested before, before making a comment please identify yourself, give your address and please spell your name so it will be spelled correctly in the transcript. The comment of each person and I really hate to do this because I hate to limit time but I really have to limit the time because of the number of people, your time limit will be three minutes. If time permits, you may then get up a second time. The time of each person belongs to that person it may not assigned or transferred to any other person. The Board is interested in issues but it is not interested in the number of people who share in each issue therefore please if the issue has already been raised, if the point has already been made, do not raise it or make it again. The Board will deal with each issue brought to it after the hearing is closed. And before we continue any further are there any questions concerning what I just said? Yes?

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, can you use the microphone please?

Chairperson Cardone: Use the microphone please.

(Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: And identify yourself. If you are speaking, it is being recorded. Excuse me.

Chairperson Cardone: Everything has to be…we have to have everything recorded. If someone could just take the microphone off and give it to her.

(Inaudible) Sandra Kissam

Chairperson Cardone: I understand that.

Ms. Kissam: I wasn’t being attentive. Did this letter come from your Board or did this letter come from the Planning Board?

Chairperson Cardone: Oh no, this letter came from this Board.

Ms. Kissam: O.K. Very good, then I would like to comment on the conditions that are laid out by that letter. A Public Hearing by definition should not limit peoples…you may limit peoples time but you cannot limit people in the terms of what they want to address and if several people wish to address the same topic you cannot impose upon them that they cannot address that topic. You can’t say to them it was already brought up, you may not mention that. If you are having a Public Hearing then you have to be willing and interested in what each person has to say and I have a big problem with this.

Chairperson Cardone: We certainly are interested in what each person has to say.

Ms. Kissam: No you’re laying out...I’m sorry?

Chairperson Cardone: Our scope is very narrow. We are here to discuss two issues and all that I’m saying is that we must only address those two issues. Our two issues are the signage and the area variances. That is what we are addressing and any comments that don’t refer to those two issues will not have any bearing on our decision. 

Ms. Kissam: I’m not raising a question about that. I’m raising a question about the fact that you included in that letter just now that you want people to restrict their remarks to those issues, which have not yet already been discussed by another person appearing before the Board. 

Chairperson Cardone: That’s a matter of saving time.

Ms. Kissam: Well it may be a matter of saving time but it’s a matter of being un-democratic and not following through on the spirit of a Public Hearing. I’m sorry. So I suggest that think about the legal implications of trying to limit comment in such a narrow way number one and number two trying to suggest that people cannot repeat what others have said. That’s my objection and I do object. 

Chairperson Cardone: This was a suggestion and letting you know that the Board is not…I said that the Board is not interested in the number but rather the issues and that allows for more issues to be raised than if we keep having the same issue repeated over and over again. That’s a suggestion I’m making to help the Board in making their decision.

Ms. Kissam: Let me just respond, if it’s a suggestion that’s fine. A suggestion is not an order. Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: I did not say that it an order but I was laying some guidelines so that we could have an orderly hearing. I talked about an orderly hearing and because of the large number of people it’s necessary to have some guidelines so that everyone will have a change. I am interested in having as many of the issues being brought to our attention as possible and otherwise we don’t get any help from you in making our decisions and I’ll now refer to the Secretary.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. On the mailings, on both issues the Public Hearing Notice was published in The Sentinel on January 15th and in The Mid-Hudson Times on January 16th. The applicant sent out one hundred and thirty seven registered letters for each case.   For the setbacks one hundred and seventeen were returned. All the mailings and publications were in order. And for the signage one hundred and eighteen were returned and all mailings and publications were in order.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. You may begin, please identify yourself.

Ms. Post: Thank you. My name is Deborah Post; I am with WB Interchange Associates, which is the developer and the owner of the Marketplace at Newburgh. I am also here with John Bainlardi who is also with WB Interchange Associates. Just by way of background, the Marketplace at Newburgh is a seven hundred and eighty (780) roughly seven hundred and eighty thousand (780,000) square foot retail facility, retail shopping center. It’s at the crossroads of Route 300 and I-84. It’s comprised of to the west along Route 300 approximately one hundred fifty thousand (150,000) square feet of a lifestyle center which is smaller stores and to the east internal to the site is the big box area or power center as you call it which has about six hundred thousand square feet (600,000). We have been before the Planning Board, as you mentioned, for several years now we have undergone a very extensive environmental review and that was culminated in May of 2007 with the Planning Board issuing findings for this project. In October 2007 the Planning Board gave the project a preliminary site plan approval. We are currently before the Planning Board right now for a sub-division…with a sub-division application. The reason that we have a sub-division application, let me just change…the reason that we required a sub-division application is because in this business of large retail developments often times some of the larger retail tenants need to own their own real estate. It’s really a condition of their financing that they have to own their own real estate. The only way that we can allow for our tenants to own their own real estate is to basically carve out their parcel from the overall parcel. What we’ve done is, we have two tenants that require to own their own real estate and so we’ve carved out two parcels. The fourth parcel is at the tail end of the site and it’s a small residential parcel of property that isn’t being used as part of the development so it’s being sectioned off. 

I just want to point out that this overall development required no variances, no variances in regard to the bulk table as it stands as a whole. Only when we’re required to carve out a couple of parcels did it result in there being technical variances created as a result of pulling out the parcels and they are really internal to the parcel itself. No buildings are changing, no size of buildings, buildings aren’t moving. It’s all staying exactly as it was as part of the planning approval, the site plan approval. Just to show you where the parcels are, the overall parcel is, you can see by the dark line here it’s about one hundred and twenty eight (128) acres and what we’ve done is we’ve carved out Lot 3 right here which requires no variances and the reason it requires no variances is that this particular building is really set aside and separate from the rest of the other buildings so it does not require any variances. This particular site here, this Lot 2 does require variances because primarily because the building that is going to occupied by this particular tenant is…shares a wall with the adjacent building. So what that does is it creates variances, internal variances with Lot 1 which is what we call the parent parcel, the larger parcel. This just gives you I think a better idea of what kind of variances we’re requesting. Again, these buildings which are in blue show you exactly where the buildings have always been and the size of the buildings as they have always been per the site plan approval and at that time everything met the Zoning Ordinance requirements with regard to bulk issues, side yards, coverage and so on. As a result of having to carve out a parcel for this particular tenant what’s happened is few things. I’ll walk you through them. On building, on Lot 2 we’ll start with Lot 2, the rear yard requirement is (50) fifty feet that would be right here. We have, I’m sorry, rear yard is (60) sixty feet, excuse me and we have (52) fifty-two feet. Now under the original site plan and the building hasn’t moved but on the original site plan this is considered a side yard and so it’s a (50) fifty foot requirement. Because of the configuration of the parcel you have to arbitrarily pick a front yard, a side yard and a back yard. So the side yard became the back yard. This is the back yard to the I-84 interchange so it does not effect any privately owned property and again the building is not moving. With regard to side yard variances the requirement…one side yard is (50) fifty feet because there is a shared common wall here we’re asking that the variance be given to (0) zero feet because again there is a shared line. The same thing you’ll find on Lot 1 again because it’s shared so it goes from (50) fifty to (0) zero. This orange line, just for your reference, is the where the side yards, where the setbacks would be. One the side again we have a (50) fifty foot requirement and the buildings are staying all where they are, where they’ve been set as part of the site plan approval. This happens to be from this arbitrary somewhat arbitrary but required in order to meet the needs of this particular tenant (46) forty-six feet and (42) forty-two feet as opposed to (50) fifty feet but again it’s a variance with…in relation to the internal building. It’s not relation to any private owners. On Lot 1, the variance again (50) fifty feet is now (0) zero and then we have the same going back this way, these are the (46) forty-six and the (42) forty-two. There is also a combined side yard requirement of (50) fifty and since we have (0) zero here and this is only (7) seven, it’s required for the side yard. There also in Lot 2, the requirement is that there be lot coverage of (30) thirty percent and it’s (33) thirty-three percent again because of the way we’ve configured the lot but the overall coverage remains the same and in conformance with the bulk table and lot surface is…the requirement is (80) eighty percent and it ends up being about (90) ninety percent. So those are the variances that are being requested and again I just want to note, I said this a few times, but I do want to impress upon the fact that as a whole this development meets all the bulk zoning requirements and but for the fact that we’ve had to carve out a lot for ownership purposes only it’s created these technical variances that we have to obtain in order to create a legal lot. With regard to, we believe that the area variance request meets the requirements of an area variance. With regard to, the variance will not produce an undesirable change in the character of the neighborhood again we’re really just putting lines on a page…lines on a sub-division map and nothing is changing. The development itself is not changing in any way. The benefit sought cannot be achieved any other way, the tenants in this business need to own their own property on occasion and when that happens the only way that you can grant that is by actually giving them the real estate under which their building exists. I believe you had a similar situation with the Target development. Where Target needed to own it’s own property for financing and ownership reasons and was taken out of the overall parcel, which created the superficial variances…not superficial…the technical variances. The area variance is in some ways substantial as it is going from (50) fifty to (0) zero but its not effecting anybody, its all internal to the property and so we would say that the variance is not substantial in effect which I think is an important distinction to be made. The variance will not have an adverse effect on physical or environmental conditions in the neighborhood. It’s been through a SEQRA process again, everything staying as it was by virtue of putting lines on a page you’re not creating any additional or any environmental issues. Is this hardship self-created? We believe it is not. It’s a requirement. It’s part of what you see in the industry today, need for the ownership of individual plots of land within an overall development. It’s the nature of the beast to a certain extent. Let’s see. I do want to point out also and I guess it’s in regard to this hardship issue, I just want to point out I was looking through some minutes that were from the Planning Board and Mike Donnelly who is the attorney for the Planning Board mentioned when the review of the Crossroads Shopping Center was under consideration that he said that and I am going to quote him, he said ‘it would be helpful if the ordinance had an animal that allowed a shopping center with various fee ownership, the interest to be treated as a single site, you wouldn’t need the variances for side yard setbacks and buildings’ and then what followed was a discussion by the Planning Board Chairman saying this should be referred at the time there was work being done on the Comprehensive Plan. And in fact, in the Comprehensive Plan it does raise the whole issue of the fact that many of the Zoning Laws on the books right now are not contemporary with some of the needs of the larger developments these days. And that’s really what this is all about. 

Mr. Hughes: What date is that letter from?

Ms. Post: It was in the Planning Board minutes and I don’t have the date but I could get it for you. I had it copied from some files I was looking at and I can trace that down. It should have had on it but it didn’t but I can get that for you.

Mr. Manley: You just made the comment that that was mentioned in the Comprehensive Plan when it was under review is that correct?

Ms. Post: What it says in the Comprehensive Plan specifically in the discussion of Town Centers which this is, it says flexibility in zoning and other regulations that would accommodate the more intense development that typifies Town Centers. Its talking about the potential…say the potential location of Town Center could be influenced by several factors including and it talks about these particular factors and is making recommendations that changes be made in the Zoning Ordinance in conformance with...

Mr. Manley: And that would be by the Town’s Planners Saccardi and Schiff?

Ms. Post: Yes, Saccardi and Schiff.

Mr. Manley: Has the Town made any changes?

Ms. Post: They have not made any changes.

Mr. Manley: O.K. Thank you.

Ms. Post: That’s it. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have questions from the Board, first? 

Mr. Manley: I actually have a couple of questions. I’ll ask one and then maybe you’ll ask some of the other Board Members to ask a question. My first is with regard to and you and I may take issue with your using the Target as an example of a comparison as to perhaps why this Board should consider your request and that is specifically that the Target, it’s my understanding, not only owns the building that they are but they also own the parking lot that the property sits on so there not just owning the building they are owning the entire sliver of land in that lot and Target is an existing structure or what previously was Ames was an existing structure which this particular project is not. It’s brand new. So I think your comparison may be although I understand you trying to draw that comparison I don’t think its…it’s apples and oranges in my view because we are talking pre-existing versus not yet built.

Ms. Post: I would just point out, I think this is what you are referring to in terms of owning some of the real estate, the parking real estate. The way that this is being carved out is that the building does also own its own parking that’s how its structured.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Ms. Post: So this whole lot is the yellow so it’s more than the building and it does include the parking.

Mr. Manley: So your retailer will own both the parking area and the building itself?

Ms. Post: Yes. That is correct.

Mr. Manley: O.K.

Ms. Post: They would have to in order to be sub-divided out because we would have to show that there is sufficient parking and so on for that, if you were to look at it in a void.

Mr. Manley: And the other question that I have is, do you have any letters from any of the retailers in which you’re seeking these variances for that indicate that they will not move into these properties without owning their own property?

Ms. Post: We do not but we can provide them for you.

Mr. Manley: O.K. because that wasn’t part of the record.

Ms. Post: No. 

Mr. Manley: That’s it for now.

Chairperson Cardone: At what point did you realize you would need these variances?

Ms. Post: We…I’d say probably about mid last year. April, I think it was.

Chairperson Cardone: Was that before the preliminary site plan approval?

Ms. Post: We were starting to talk about it before preliminary site plan approval.

Mr. Bainlardi: The negotiations with respect to property ownership have been on-going…some tenants…

Chairperson Cardone: I guess my question is why were you not before this Board earlier?

Mr. Bainlardi: We were not before this Board earlier because we’re not …we do not…

Chairperson Cardone: Please speak right into the microphone.

Mr. Bainlardi: We were not before this Board earlier because we were not aware at the time of site plan approval that variances would be required. Because we were in negotiations with the tenants but we had no way of knowing who was going to require ownership of their parcels and who wasn’t. The negotiations are…in one of the negotiations typical with retail tenants is an ownership versus ground lease type of scenario. And ownership of the individual parcels by retailers is a relatively recent phenomenon in shopping center industry because over a period of time retailers became aware of the potential value of the land and they wanted to own the underlying.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you just identify yourself for the record?

Mr. Bainlardi: My name is John Bainlardi and I am a developer for WB Interchange.

Audience Member: I can’t hear a word he is saying.

Chairperson Cardone: Is that microphone on?

Mr. Bainlardi: Can you hear me now? One other thing I would like to point out about the overall shopping center and which was addressed in the sub-division of the Lowe’s Center as well which was also parceled out so that Lowe’s could own their underlying real estate. What was required and what has been here is a reciprocal easement and operating agreement and essentially what that means is that the entire shopping center will be operated as a one unit. It is not bifurcated because there are different property owners. In maintenance of the overall shopping center will be maintained by one entity. The responsibility for that maintenance as well as the responsibility to make sure that the property is maintained in accordance with the Town Laws with respect to snow removal, parking lot maintenance, landscaping, so on and so forth will all be and continue to remain in the owner of the large parent parcel. This will be reduced and memorialized in a reciprocal easement and operating agreement as well as a separate undertaking or developers agreement between the developer and the Town, so that if…the Town will not have to go to multiple property owners to enforce the laws of the Town of Newburgh with respect to maintenance.

Chairperson Cardone: Mr. Hughes.  

Mr. Hughes: Yes, does that include security and I’d like to know what you do and what you do beside your names? 

Mr. Bainlardi: I am the development manager for the project. Deborah is also development manager and we’ve been sharing duties as of late. I’ve been working on the project since I joined Wilder Balter just about a year and a half ago. This is the only project that I work on; I’m fully familiar with every aspect of the project whether it’s leasing, site work and site development.

Mr. Hughes: And what is your sheepskin of expertise?   

Mr. Bainlardi: Well, I am a lawyer by background, real estate attorney. I had a private practice for ten years before coming to Wilder Balter representing developers, builders, individual property owners, residential home sales, and purchases commercial properties.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you and I’d like her to speak for herself please.

Ms. Post: I’m actually a vice president with Wilder Balter Partners. I’ve been with them for eight years. I work on a multitude of projects. More recently probably for about a half a year I have been working on this particular project maybe a little bit longer. My background is in business. I have an MBA and I studied economic development and have gotten into real estate development as well. 


Mr. Hughes: Thank you. Now do you have a legitimate sub-division at this point?

Ms. Post: We do not have sub-division approval. We were referred to the Zoning Board to get the variances that we require in order to have the sub-division go through. 

Mr. Hughes: I thought you had the cart before the horse in this?

Ms. Post: No, I could refer to your attorney perhaps but…

Mr. Hughes: Oh, I’d like to hear what your attorney has to say about this.

Ms. Post: Well he is not my attorney and I just want to make that clear John does not work for us as an attorney. He has an attorney’s background but he does not work for us as…is that an accurate description? We were told by the Planning Board that as part of the sub-division process…we went to them, they reviewed our application, they referred us to the Zoning Board to obtain our variances and then we were instructed once that’s achieved to come back to them for a final sub-division approval.

Mr. Donovan: Just to be clear, Section 277-3 of the New York State Town Law says, if a project doesn’t comply with the Zoning Regulations it cannot be approved. In this case, the bulk regulations, the setback, the sub-division cannot be approved by Planning Board. That’s the purpose of the referral here because they couldn’t act on it unless there was variances were issued by this Board relative to the setbacks.

Mr. Manley: However, Mr. Donovan, they were able to go over the concept of what they were planning, correct?

Mr. Donovan: Correct.

Mr. Manley: With the Planning Board, they just weren’t able to, at that point, approve it. 

Mr. Donovan: The Planning Board could not approve it. That’s correct.  

Mr. Hughes: How did the 400% overage on the signs and stuff sneak up on you? You’ve been in this business a long time by what you told me that your experience is.

Ms. Post: We have actually, that’s the subject of a separate, I don’t know if you are separating out the Public Hearings or not. But this presentation was just on the sub-division piece so I just want to make sure that we’re doing this the way you want to do this. 

Chairperson Cardone: We can handle them both at the same time.

Ms. Post: O.K. so then what I’d like is, John was going to give a presentation on our signage variances and then hopefully that will answer your question. O.K.?

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Mr. Bainlardi: I will start with this drawing here which should have been included in your package. It’s drawing SW-3. It is…here at the top the overall site plan and then in and around the perimeter of the sheet are the different monument pylon signs, direction signs that have been presented.

Mr. Manley: The smaller stores that you have on here, are they fictional tenants? 

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes.

Mr. Manley: They are, O.K.

Mr. Hughes: Have you considered a provision for signage on those units as well? 

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes. It’s all here and I will layout the signage plan.

Mr. Hughes: Do you anticipate any variances required for the fictitious stores?

Mr. Bainlardi: Well, what we’re asking for is overall signage allotment, which will be interspersed amongst all of the stores proportionate to the size of the individual store.

So we’ve created a comprehensive plan with a full set of criteria for the individual signs.

Mr. Hughes: Could you describe your methodology of proportionate ratios according to the square footage of the building?

Mr. Bainlardi: Sure. Why don’t we start with the a…maybe the place to start then is with the actual signage sketch. Under the existing Code, the Code allows for one half square foot of signage per linear foot of road frontage. When you do that calculation the project would be allocated a total allowable signage of 3304 sq ft. 

Mr. Hughes: Before or after the sub-division?   

Mr. Bainlardi: Well the sub-division doesn’t affect the roads.

Mr. Hughes: It does affect your frontage and your signage.

Mr. Bainlardi: It doesn’t because we’re not allowed to include the internal access drive which is not a public roadway. It’s a private roadway, access drive to be maintained internally by the shopping center.

Mr. Hughes: So it neither diminishes or bolsters?

Mr. Bainlardi: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: It doesn’t have any effect.

Mr. Bainlardi: It doesn’t have any effect, I mean…

Mr. Hughes: So why did you bring it up?

Mr. Bainlardi: I’m sorry?

Mr. Hughes: So why did you bring it up?

Mr. Bainlardi: This is a starting point, this so you will know what we are permitted under the Code. 

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Bainlardi: O.K. what we’re requesting is a total allowable signage of 12,781 sq ft and we came to this methodology as follows, we looked at the shopping centers in the Town of Newburgh that are currently here. We looked at their requirements and what they’ve requested in the past, in the way of signage variances and what they have been granted. 

Mr. Hughes: Can you say whom you compared it to?

Mr. Bainlardi: Sure. We compared it to the Target center, the Home Depot/Kohl’s development, to the Lowe’s center and most recently to the Newburgh Retail Development which is on the corner of 17K and 300 where the Chili’s restaurant is currently being constructed.

Mr. Manley: Did you use the Newburgh Mall at all as a comparison?

Mr. Bainlardi: We did not.

Mr. Manley: Oh, O.K.

Mr. Bainlardi: The Newburgh Mall is an internal mall in which all of the signage is located on the inside of the mall. This is an external mall. In looking and reviewing those different situations in which the Planning Board reviewed those shopping centers and which this Board also considered variances we came to some calculations for purposes of how those variances were ultimately approved. With respect to the Kohl’s center, also known as Newburgh Plaza where Home Depot and Pet Smart are, there this Board approved a signage package, which was equal to 2% of the square footage of the buildings in that center. Similarly in Crossroads or Target, the total square footage, I’m sorry; the total percentage of the gross lease able area of square footage was allocated to 1.7% of the buildings. Here in the Marketplace we are proposing 1.6% of the total square footage. Now in Target and in Home Depot, they arrived at the ultimate figures differently. In Kohl’s, they simply said 2% of the gross lease able area whereas in Target they did an analysis of one, basically one square foot of signage per linear foot of frontage. I’m sorry, per linear of building frontage so not road frontage but the individual buildings themselves. So in thinking about that and how to allocate signage across the entire project the first thing that jumped out and came to mind is, right how do we do this in a way in which the allocation of the signage is proportionate based upon square footage. So that the larger box would have a larger signage, a smaller box would have proportionately smaller. And, what we ended up doing is adopting the one square foot per linear foot of a building façade. And then the Planning Board was concerned that certain parts of the building should not be included in the calculation and in particular those sections of building would not face either a roadway or the parking. So we then back out from the calculation the rear of Building C, Building D and Building E. These are the rear portions of these buildings, which face the hillside and the residential neighborhood in the back.

Mr. Hughes: Which would be north?

Mr. Bainlardi: Correct, that’s north. We similarly, the Planning Board expressed a concern about having signage on the rear of the buildings that faced the 7 North Exit off of I-84 so we then removed from the calculations the rear of Building A, Building B and Building 2. These are rears of buildings, these are areas where there are loading docks and such and really aren’t appropriate for signage to begin with so those have come out of the calculations and what we ended up reducing the number to where we are today. And, so I can run through the rationale with respect to the five points that are required for approving a variance or granting a variance of this type. The variance will not produce and undesirable change in the character of the neighborhood or nearby properties. The development is located in an IB district it is zoned commercial. It primarily fronts on Route 300, which is, we all know is, a commercial roadway. With respect to a project of this size there is a need to be able to inform customers and people who are driving on the roadways, identification for tenants do that customers are able to know where they need to turn and locate themselves. The benefit sought cannot be achieved some other way. Signage is a necessary requirement for the retail industry. We’ve tried to allocate the signage in a rational way and limits and there are limitations that we’ve created in the signage plan and I’ll get into those more in a moment. But you do require an adequate amount of signage to…for the public to be able to identify the retailers. An area variance is not substantial. On the face it is substantial. We are asking for essentially a 300% variance above what’s permitted but this something that is consistent with the other large retail developments in Newburgh as eluded to before. Variances have been granted for similar magnitude for the Target, Lowe’s, Home Depot centers as well as most recently the Newburgh Retail Development and I’ve provided your counsel with copies of those decisions for his convenience. Variance will not have an adverse effect on the physical or environmental conditions of the neighborhood. With respect to pylon signage, we are only proposing one pylon and that is to be located at 300 and the reason or the need for the sign is that much of the development is located internally without visibility from Route 300. The only place to be able identify the tenants from…they can be visible from the road or out at the Route 300 entrance. So we’re proposing one double-sided pylon sign not unlike some of the other signs you’ve seen around Town. However we’ve limited it in size under the Code you are permitted to have a pylon as high as 40 feet. This pylon sign from the base to the very tip is 28 feet. It is…it will be limited to identify those larger tenants that are located internally and are not visible otherwise from Route 300. At the entrances to, at the Route 52 and Meadow Avenue entrance, we have a secondary entrance there, as well as Route 52 and Fifth Avenue we are not proposing pylon signage at those entrances. We’ve…there we have proposed a smaller pylon sign, I’m sorry, a smaller monument sign which is a total of 5 ½ feet, it will sit on a natural stone base and will be landscaped as will the pylon sign and the slightly larger monument sign out at Route 300. Those monument signs are simply there to identify the shopping center. There’s no tenant identification on those signs. Under the Code, the Code allows for one freestanding sign per property. Clearly it did not take into account this type of a center when it was drafted and what we’re asking for is a total of twenty freestanding signs. The four signs which I have alluded to just a moment ago are the two, the three monument signs and the one pylon sign are out at the roadways. The remainder of the signs are internal to the center and they are located...I’ll start with the village center directory. This is a directory like you would see in an internal mall or in a outdoor village type center. You’ve got out of your car; you’ve walked into the center you want to know where such and such store is, you walk up to this directory, it’s in height about this high and probably about this width and identified on that directory will be a map such as this color coded identifying where you can find your particular retailer that you are looking for as well as identify where you are on the map. There will be four of those proposed internal to the village center at various locations and identified on the map. In addition, we are proposing twelve directional site signs. They are also a smaller monument sign about seven feet high, four feet in width on a natural stone base and all of these signs as you can see are trimmed out very nicely in a colonial type of a trim and these individual directional site signs are solely for the purpose of identifying the, I’m sorry, for assisting the driver who is his car or her car and is coming through the center. Come to an intersection and you want to know where is Costco, there’s a directional sign that will point you into the direction of where you want to get to. And again, these are internal to the site, are not visible in anyway from outside of the site, you have to be in the shopping center to see them. Hardship has not been self-created; again the Comprehensive Plan acknowledges that the Zoning Code is inadequate with regard to signage requirements. There have been a number of, actually in each one of the variance applications with respect to signage that I alluded to earlier that I have the opportunity to read indicated that this is a problem that has not been addressed in the Code and should, probably should be.

Mr. Hughes: If I may, how does that exclude you from the self-created hardship?

Mr. Bainlardi: Well, it’s not self-created. It’s…you have a need for the signage and that’s a...

Mr. Hughes: You have the need for the signage. I don’t.

Mr. Bainlardi: Tenants have the need for the signage.

Mr. Hughes: Well then how can you say it’s not self-created?

Mr. Bainlardi: It’s not.

Mr. Hughes: O.K.

Mr. Bainlardi: How do typically identify the stores that you frequent?

Mr. Hughes: We go out and look at them and we know what the law says.

Mr. Bainlardi: And typically a retail establishment will have signs. Everyone one has signs they serve a useful purpose.

Mr. Hughes: We are not talking about the need for signs. We’re talking about the hardship. At least I’m talking about the hardship; you’re trying to avoid it.

Mr. Bainlardi: I’m not trying to avoid it.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, O.K. well then tell me how?

Mr. Manley: The sign proposal…

Mr. Hughes: If I may, I am not done with him yet.

Mr. Manley: I thought you were done.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me Ron, could you just pull the mic a little closer?

Mr. Hughes: You’re not really going to do that are you? How is it a hardship? Is that what you wanted me to ask him?

Mr. Bainlardi: How is it a hardship?

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Bainlardi: Well, the hardship is that if we were to have to rely upon the signage that is permitted under the Code we could not adequately sign each one of these buildings.

Mr. Hughes: If I may, could you explain to him the legal definition of a…

Mr. Donovan: Well there’s a couple of things going on, in terms of the hardship just remember that the standard for an area variance is a balancing test. There’s five factors that you use and you balance so the old unnecessary hardship rule kind of got thrown out by the legislature a number of years ago so you balance the five factors, the benefit to the applicant versus the detriment to the property owner. Relative to this question that you are asking my opinion would be or what I would say because the law is the law it is a self-created hardship but in the area of an area variance self-created hardships are not an absolute bar as they are in use variances to granting relief. I don’t know if the answer you wanted but that’s the answer.

Mr. Hughes: Well no, I wanted that description, yes. But now if you can tell me how it’s not self-created. You knew what the property was when you bought it; you knew what was going on there to begin with. You were playing the game with big league stores and you know what they traditionally do. How did you overlook this? This is a basic deal.

Mr. Bainlardi: It’s not overlooked. I mean it’s unavoidable.

Mr. Hughes: Poor planning?

Mr. Bainlardi: No sir.

Mr. Hughes: Oh, O.K. well then instruct me.

Mr. Bainlardi: Well the Code permits a certain amount of square footage on this property except it doesn’t provide for the proper mechanism or a rational mechanism in order to sign the stores that are otherwise permitted under the Code. It’s arbitrary in the way its been written. Its written tied to frontage on a roadway, which has no rational basis or tie, in most cases, to the buildings that are actually constructed on a property. We are talking about signage that is proportionate to the building upon which it’s placed and we have created a comprehensive sign plan which does that. It limits the amount of signage that may be placed on any particular building in proportion to the size of the building so it’s not out of character. It’s not a huge sign and it’s not too small, it’s legible and in addition to that aside from what we’re identifying here today which is the need for additional square footage. We’ve also gone to some lengths to create, together with the Planning Board and in response to the recently adopted Town guidelines, development guidelines to create a methodology. I’ll put up this one which is site plan drawing #4 which creates a criteria in which all tenants must comply with and it clearly identifies those types of signs, signage components and devices that are not permitted, that have been identified in the Town guidelines as not being the types of signs that are…that are desirable…not desirable. Such as box cabinet type except for totally recessed, cloth, paper, cardboard and sticker or decals, moving, rotating or flashing, internally illuminated, these are specifically excluded from…will not be permitted in the shopping center. It also identifies those basic type of signs that are encouraged in the center such as that beveled, sand blasted glass, dimensional metal, plastic, glass or other material, sand blasted or carved wooden signs, gold leaf signs, sculpted signs, so on and so forth.

Chairperson Cardone: If we could at this point I would like to read the report from the County and any recommendations and any suggestions they had to offer.

We advise that the Town should evaluate the application to determine with all the proposed signs are necessary for the proposed development. This may require the applicant to prepare a site plan showing the proposed location of each freestanding sign; this plan might also contain the square footage of each proposed sign and their respective heights, which you have done. We advise that the Town should review the area of all proposed signs and determine whether all the proposed sign area is necessary. The signage plan suggested above would be helpful in making this determination. The proposed variances to the Town Codes governing the Interchange Business zone do not appear to have any significant intercommunity or county-wide impacts. We remind the Town that State law requires any variance granted to be the minimum variance that is necessary. 

Than just pertains to the signs.

And the County report for the other variances: We advise that the Town should evaluate the application to determine whether all the proposed setback variances are necessary for the proposed development. This may require the applicant to modify the site plan so that more of the proposed buildings are able to meet the required setbacks. We advise that the Town should review the area of all proposed development, and determine whether all the proposed developed area is necessary. The Town should consider that increases to the maximum lot building coverage and lot surface coverage standards will increase the impacts of development on the neighboring area. The proposed variances to the Town codes governing the Interchange Business zone do not appear to have any significant intercommunity or county-wide impacts. We remind the Town that State law requires any variance granted to be the minimum variance that is necessary. 

Do we have any further questions from the Board? 

Mr. Manley: I do and I’m gathering from what you were saying earlier that the need to have such a large variance is because the stores in order for them to be successful in this Marketplace that they have to have that amount of signage, that total amount of signage you need that in order for these businesses to be successful? And I would kind of through at you just as an example, we have a McDonald’s here in the Town of Newburgh that’s on Route 300 now McDonald’s traditionally, you know, what do you know McDonald’s for? The golden arches well the golden arches if you notice when you go by there, I don’t know if you live in Newburgh or not, but there’s no golden arches. And that was because when that property was developed part of the agreement within that with the Planning Board way back then which was in the late ‘70’s, early ‘80’s was that that particular mall would not have outdoor signage that it would have one major sign on the outside and part of the agreement with McDonald’s was you wouldn’t have the golden arches and from what I understand that McDonald’s is a very very high traffic. They’ve got two drive-thru’s there and that’s a million dollar McDonald’s over there and they’re pretty successful. So, I’m just questioning your argument that you need a lot of signage or that you need signs in order to have a successful…I understand that you do need a trademark, people need to know where to go. That I understand but when you’re saying large signs and specifically it’s the Best Buy that I looked at when I looked at the plans here and I was reviewing it. There’s actually three Best Buy signs, one on the north side, one on the east side and one on the west side. Now that corresponds to #2 on the map, is that correct?

Mr. Bainlardi: I can put that drawing up for you.

Mr. Manley: If you would, please. Now the County indicated that in consideration of the variance, the Zoning Board should grant the variance that’s needed, the largest amount that’s needed, not the largest amount that you maybe need but the largest amount that will do the job. So that’s kind of what I’m concerned with is…now you see how you have the three Best Buy signs?

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes.

Mr. Manley: Why can’t Best Buy have just one sign? Why do they need three sides?

Mr. Bainlardi: It’s for visibility purposes.

Mr. Donovan: If you could just use the microphone? Is that what you wanted to say, Betty?

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: Yes, O.K. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you, Dave

Mr. Bainlardi: It’s brand recognition. It is being able to be identified readily. As you are coming into the center, as you’re driving in from…

Mr. Manley: The main entrance from 300?

Mr. Bainlardi: Let’s take that entrance as an example. As you’re coming in before you get to the front of that building what you see is, you see the side of that building and the…

Mr. Manley: Which? Now which building is this drawing here…?  

Mr. Bainlardi: The building that is…

Mr. Manley: Building #2?

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes.

Mr. Manley: But building B blocks the one side.

Mr. Bainlardi: And more so from the opposite entrance as you’re coming in and you’re coming in the access drive…

Mr. Manley: Right, but from the west side, building B blocks that so you’re making the case that you need it for visibility purposes, there’s no visibility from side B. Yes?

Mr. Bainlardi: Other than the parking lot in which people are parking.

Mr. Manley: But they have to come in the front so they are going to see it in the front. Do you know what I’m saying?

Mr. Bainlardi: Right but what typically…what you have is you have some sort of tenant identification in each parking lot in which people are parked. So that when they are parking they get out of the car they know where they are going. 

Mr. Manley: Well.

Mr. Bainlardi: And just so that we’re not operating in a vacuum on Best Buy, a Best Buy, the prototypical Best Buy requested almost 1100 sq ft of signage. We cut that in, close to half through negotiation and what we basically said to them is, listen these are the requirements of the Planning Board with respect to having a fair amount an adequate amount of signage and being able to disperse it in a proportionate way around the building. Now in other centers what you allocate is an amount of signage based upon total gross lease able area and then what we did is put a cap that no sign can exceed a certain percentage of the total square footage of the façade on which it placed. So you have a protection there because you can’t take all the gross lease…all the square footage that’s allotted to a particular tenant put it into one big sign and stick it on the front of the building.  So this way we’ve tried to accommodate to some extent the needs of the retailers as they’re expressing those needs to us and signage especially with national retailers it’s a very difficult…

Mr. Manley: But I’ve also known retailers to comply with local zoning when they have to.

Mr. Bainlardi: Sure and in this instance what we were able to do is we were able to meet to…and they’re not, they’re not satisfied, nobody is 100% satisfied. What we’re able to get away from what they require nationally and what they typically require on their buildings and reduce it down to a human scale. So that you’re not putting a 400 sq ft Best Buy ticket on the front of this store. We’ve cut it by 50% along the front (inaudible) and what Best Buy had indicated to us is that it was more important to them to have the signs on the sides of these buildings because of the way the building is situated than on the front. Obviously they need a sign on the front but that was the thought process with Best Buy. And, you know, Best Buy frankly is…is a tenant, which is a little bit more over the top if you will with respect to its signage that it required. So it was negotiated extensively and the Planning Board in reviewing the overall site plan made us make changes. We made presentations, this is not acceptable we need for you to eliminate sections and frontages and we did it in calculating signage and we did it in such a way which we felt was consistent with what has been in the village in the past, I’m sorry, in the Town.

Mr. Manley: Would you, as being one of the developers of the property, have any objection if the…if your organization was willing to perhaps pay for a study, based on, for this Board and of course this Board would pick the company that would work with the Zoning Board in order to determine what is the best amount of square footage that would work for that particular property within our code requirements.

Mr. Bainlardi: I would consider that. I can’t give you answer tonight but we can go back to the office and…

Mr. Manley: Because frankly, I am not a sign expert and I would like to get some information from someone who is a designer or an expert with regard to signage that could potentially work with this Board to say that well this particular…this Best Buy sign you don’t need one on this side so we could cut that one out. That way when you’re getting your variance from this Board you’re getting the minimum that you need not…if you don’t need 12,000 I certainly, you know, don’t feel that we should give you 12,000 if it’s too much. If the sign expert says listen you could do it with 5,000 and it would be very effective, then 5,000 is maybe what you should get. But I need, I need an expert to help tell me that because I’m certainly not a sign expert.

Mr. Bainlardi: Did you require that additional information? I’m sorry were you on this Board when the last several variances were adopted?

Mr. Manley: Absolutely.

Mr. Bainlardi: And, was that…

Mr. Manley: The size of that particular, the magnitude of that project was nowhere near the magnitude of this project.

Mr. Bainlardi: No, but it is proportionate. In other words, the amount of signage that was permitted for those particular centers is proportionate in comparison to its overall square footage. If that, for example, if you had a 200,000 sq ft center and you adopted a variance, which permitted 2%, and you did the same thing for an 800,000 sq ft center proportionately the signage is the same and that is what we’ve done here and in addition what they haven’t done in those other shopping centers is we went to an additional length to create a formal signage criteria which is…comports with the Town development guidelines which most recently have been put into place.

Mr. Manley: And I understand what you’re saying about you’re trying to make the analogy that well because you did it for these people that that should be considered for our project but frankly each project stands on its own merits.

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes, but I don’t…

Mr. Manley: And, each project is independent and my feeling with this particular project is the size of the project and the amount of the signage we’re talking 12,000 sq ft I would like to get some information, some data so that I can make an educated decision which would work best. Now if you don’t feel that that’s something you want to offer up and that you know, certainly you’ve paid probably hundreds of thousands of dollars in consultants’ fees to the Planning Board, right? So, probably more than that so you know if you want to do the right thing with the community that you’re going to have a project in I think that the amount that you’re going to spend on this is going to be nowhere what you have spent already. I think it’s a drop in the bucket with respect to getting this Board the information that it really should have in order to make a very important decision for the people of the Town of Newburgh. And, if you’re the community partner that you’ve always said you are I can’t see where that wouldn’t be a good thing for the community.

Ms. Post: I’d just like to point out one thing. And I know that the Zoning Board doesn’t have perhaps the same luxury that the Planning Board does but the Planning Board does have a consultant, Karen Arent who they consider to be their expert on signage. And as John mentioned we did go through several months of working with her to come up with a program that she felt was really was appropriate and accurate. We showed many elevations of building showing how the proposed allocation of signage would translate into actual buildings and signage and it was a whole long process and she is considered an expert at least for the Planning Board and that’s not to say that you need to take her advice obviously but that’s what we’ve been basing our plans on. And furthermore there was a memo from Ed Garling specifically suggesting the criteria we ended up using which is half linear foot per…the half foot per linear foot of frontage plus one foot per frontage...linear frontage of building which is what we proposed to do the exact same thing which is essentially is what Ed Garling had proposed in a memo.

Chairperson Cardone: I think that what Mr. Manley is saying is that it doesn’t hurt to have another pair of eyes look at it and offer another opinion.

Mr. McKelvey: You also have directional signs sending them to these buildings too. Am I correct?

Ms. Post: Yes.

Mr. Bainlardi: Directional signs in the area.

Mr. McKelvey: In the inside to sent them to these stores. Because the little stores are only going to have a little sign on them. The people are going to have to go look for them too.

Ms. Post: Just so you know, the total square footage that we’re requesting includes all the pylon signs, all the directional signs, directories…

Mr. McKelvey: I understand.

Ms. Post: …that we would have, so I just wanted to make sure you understand that.  

Ms. Eaton: Do you have tenants for buildings A thru E?

Ms. Post: No, we do not. Oh, we have some…

Mr. Bainlardi: (Inaudible)

Ms. Post: Do you want to go through that?

Chairperson Cardone: That could be a problem if they then said they had to have something different?

Ms. Post: No there would be the criteria…(inaudible)

Ms. Drake: Use the microphone.

Ms. Post: I’m sorry?

Ms. Drake: Use the microphone.

Ms. Post: Oh, I’m sorry. What we’re saying is that because it would not be efficient for us to be coming back for every sign for every building in this development and what we’ve done is we’ve set out very specific criteria that we worked out with Karen Arent in terms of how we would allocate the square footage to each individual building. So there is and she will then review each individual sign as it comes through to make sure that it meets the criteria that’s been set forth.

Ms. Drake: Can I ask one question before you go to that? In the minutes from I believe it’s from the December, is that when you were last at the Planning Board? December… 

Ms. Post: Yes.

Ms. Drake: Karen stated that there were some changes to be made to the charts and the charts we would get would be updated. Were they updated?

Ms. Post: Yes they were, yes. The ones that we submitted were the ones that went through her final review and approval.

Ms. Drake: And they are updated based on…

Ms. Post: Yes.

Ms. Drake: …her comments. O.K. Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: I have several things. Number one I believe Karen Arent is a landscape architect and not a sign expert so...

Ms. Post: That’s true.

Mr. Hughes: I don’t know why…not only that but I think that everybody in the world knows the famous Fishkill Hess Station and the corporate logos and the corporate dimensions and all the stuff that comes down the line with that. You’re an attorney, right?

You must know the precedential case that I’m speaking of…the Hess Gasoline Station on Route 9.

Mr. Bainlardi: I am familiar with the property.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. How can you sit hear and hang on the fact that they have to have the dimensional sign dimensions that they are looking for because its corporate and its logo?

Are you here to get your variance and negotiate this thing? Or are you here to dig your heals in and say that the tenant has to have that sign? That’s not so. The law says that we’re to evaluate and weigh all this stuff that you bring to us and give to you the necessary variance minimally required. So get that out of your mind right now that we have to go along with what that national corporate thing mandates. It’s not so.

Mr. Bainlardi: I wasn’t…I didn’t mean to imply that.

Mr. Hughes: O.K. just so that we’re on even ground here understanding each other.

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes sir.

Mr. Hughes: There’s a lot of stuff that has been set down as precedential already and if you’re not aware of it I can give you the case law so you can review it. I don’t buy it. First of all, I’d like to know how you calculated your formula or your opinion to say that you are looking for more than 300% more than you’re allowed. To me its almost 4.79, 479% not 300% and so I’d like to know your methodology of calculations and then maybe I can understand better. Maybe it’s my mistake.

Mr. Bainlardi: I think when I said 300% I was referring to…

Mr. Hughes: The 300% overage?

Mr. Bainlardi: …one of the other projects, yes.

Mr. Hughes: I see. Well thanks for clarifying that I understand a little better now but again you’re using consultants that aren’t experts in the field that you’re referring to and I’m not going to buy that. I agree with my colleague, Mr. Manley. If you’re to try to get this we need a little bit more.

Mr. McKelvey: You also have a sign here that says, you say that its 28 feet high and it comes up to a point and that point counts too.

Ms. Post: It’s still within the a…it is within the 40 foot so it doesn’t require a variance.

Mr. Hughes: I would like to know… 

Chairperson Cardone: It’s probably closer to 32 feet. 

Ms. Post: Does it have it on there?

Chairperson Cardone: The dimension wasn’t there but it just looks like it.

Mr. McKelvey: The dimension is not on there, that’s all.

Ms. Post: That sign, 32.

Mr. Hughes: For my satisfaction and I believe my colleagues will agree I would like to know what you have in mind for each one of those buildings that you have drawn on that thing and what percentage ratio and you’ve mentioned that the calculations were taken off the façade was that true?

Mr. Bainlardi: The calculations are taken off of the linear frontage of each building. So if a building has 100 feet of length, it would be 100 sq ft would be thrown into the hopper for that particular tenant.

Mr. Hughes: I thought you said it was a half of square foot?

Mr. Bainlardi: No, you have a half of foot for the linear frontage of road and you have one foot, square foot of signage for each linear foot of building façade.

Mr. Hughes: That’s what you used in your calculations. Could you provide an entire…?

Ms. Post: (Inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Sir could you pass the mic over? I’m sorry it’s not getting recorded.

Ms. Post: We provided the Marketplace in Newburgh’s signage schedule and it’s spells out specifically how we came up with the 12,781 figure and it’s a combination linear roadways and again it’s following what Ed Garling had suggested and what we followed of the half square foot per linear foot of road frontage plus one square foot per linear foot of façade. And that’s how we came up with the 12, 781.

Chairperson Cardone: As I mentioned before, this hearing will…the Public Hearing will have to be held open, so I’d really like to start getting some comments from the public and I’d also like to read into the record letters that I’ve received. And the first is:

Unfortunately I will not be able to attend the Public Hearing tonight due to an injury but would appreciate it if you could include my attached letter as part of the public comments. I will also send you a signed copy in the mail. Thank you Laura Coleman.

Dear Board Members: The Town of Newburgh passed the Town of Newburgh Comprehensive Plan to “select and create the tools necessary to ensure new development is located and designed in ways which benefit the Town and protect and enhance the existing community character.” The Plan was passed and “Local Law Amending Chapter 185 entitled ‘Zoning’ of the Code of the Town of Newburgh Buffer and Setback Requirements” was adopted. The variances requested by the developer of the Marketplace at Newburgh, (both the setback and signage variances requested at the Public Hearing of January 24, 2008), would make a mockery of the Town of Newburgh Comprehensive Plan if adopted. Through two Environmental Impact Public Hearings in the summer of 2006, and the subsequent adoption of the Final EIS by the Town of Newburgh Planning Board, the developer failed to mention changes he planned to make in either setback requirements or signage. How could the developer not know that he would want more signs? Perhaps because of the negative public climate toward the project, he chose to wait to request a variance through the Zoning Board of Appeals at a later time. Perhaps he was hoping that the ZBA would be more easily swayed than the other Boards in the Town. This developer, Robert Wilder, has a history of appearing before the Planning Board with a new Site plan from one meeting to the next. Perhaps he thinks he can fool those he has referred to openly and loudly in Town Hall as “country bumpkins” by constantly changing what he puts forth time and again as his plan. I submit that Mr. Wilder bears watching. I urge the ZBA to base your decision as to the number of signs and setback requests for the Marketplace at Newburgh on the existing zoning and the premise of the Town of Newburgh Comprehensive Plan to ensure that this new development is designed to “benefit the Town and protect and enhance the existing community character.” We do not need another gaudy strip mall in the Town of Newburgh to replace an existing 127 acres of forest that currently buffer noise, reduce pollution and add to the quality of the existing surrounding community. Thank you for considering my request. Sincerely, Laura Kohlmann, 18 Wintergreen Avenue, Newburgh, New York. 

I also have another letter from Save Open Space but I would ask if those people are here if they would read the letter and that would be from Sibylle Tulve and Eleanor Doderer. Either of those people here this evening?

Ms. Tulve: Good evening, my name is Sibylle Tulve and I live at 107 Highland Avenue.

Chairperson Cardone: This is dated January 23rd.

Ms. Tulve: Dear Board Members:  

We are writing on behalf of the Save Open Space citizens group in the Town of Newburgh in reference to the Marketplace Mall development proposal appearing before your Board at the upcoming Zoning Board of Appeals meeting on January 24, 2008. The developer Mr. Wilder, with several of his consultants, came before the December 20, 2007 meeting of the Planning Board and for the first time in public stated his intention to turn his parcel into a four-lot subdivision. Regarding variances he explained, “Overall this development has no—is requesting no variances at all.” But then he contradicted himself by explaining that with the property redone as a four-lot subdivision, variances would be needed: specifically setback variances---five in all. At the meeting a Board Member said, “I notice there’s several lot lines that have to be removed. Have we---we haven’t acted on those yet.” Attorney Donnelly replied, “No. You’re not acting on the subdivision now. You’re referring the subdivision components that require variances to the Zoning Board.” By not acting on the subdivision that night, the Planning Board did not fulfill its obligations and, instead, put the proverbial “Cart before the Horse.” They jumped over a vital step by not taking action that night on the subdivision. A supplemental EIS may be required given the transformation of the Marketplace mall into 4 parcels. The FEIS for the Marketplace mall as well all of the public comments and reaction to the project have been based on single ownership. Any variances for the proposed new lots should not be reviewed or granted until the 4-lot subdivision is finalized, such that the ZBA has in hand the actual configuration of the footprint of the buildings, not a proposal. The request for setback variances is itself an example of how the newly-proposed subdividing of the property can result in new impacts. As a result, it would be unreasonable and premature for the ZBA to consider granting the setback variances being requested. If and when the ZBA does address the setbacks on the site, please consider the recently enacted Buffer and Setback Zoning Amendment is a carefully crafted ordinance that deserves respect. Proper setbacks enhance the community as a whole and this proposal is in a highly visible location, arguably at the “Gateway” to our town. Proper setbacks allow for attractive landscaping. Again, the proposed development would abut residential districts, and every attempt should be made to minimize already disastrous impacts. This issue allows the ZBA to consider one of the guidelines in NYS Zoning Board policy: (and this is a quote) “In making its determination the zoning board of appeals shall take into consideration…(1) whether an undesirable change will be produced in the character of the neighborhood or a detriment to nearby properties will be created by the granting of the area variance.” This same guideline for approval comes into play with the next set of variances to be requested by the developer, namely, regarding signage on the proposed mall. The developer wants total signage of 12,781 square feet, even though the code permits only 3,304 square feet. He concludes, “So the difference is what we would be asking for the variance.” Nowhere in his comments does he argue ‘hardship’ as a basis for the variance. Instead he makes the case that, “…the sign variance in the Town of Newburgh has not been changed for many years and most developers, commercial space, come in and ask for sign variances because the amount of signage you’re permitted under the Ordinance is significantly less than anything that is typical. The Town Board, for a variety of reasons I guess, has just not made the change in their Ordinance.” In other words, he is arguing the sign ordinance is defective and does not deserve to be adhered to. The ZBA is certainly aware that, once again, the signage on the proposed development site, more than 100 acres, critically affects the neighboring residential areas. It changes the character of their neighborhoods, can cause considerable light pollution, and overall reduces their property values. The excess signage, particularly in combination with the pylon sign proposed, damages the perception of the town, again at basically the gateway of Newburgh, on Rte. 300. Therefore, the ZBA has it in its power to block or severely limit those requested variances and help to preserve our community, as we know it. We quote from the State Code regarding the granting of a variance, the applicant must show (3) “that the requested use variance, if granted, will not alter the essential character of the neighborhood.” Again from the Code, “ the Zoning Board of Appeals shall take into consideration the benefit to the applicant if the variance is granted, as weighed against the detriment to the health, safety and welfare of the neighborhood and community…” In summary, we believe that the ZBA should not consider variances until a final plan, with all subdivisions, is approved. Thank you for your consideration of our letter. We look forward to attending the meeting. And we are here tonight attending the meeting. Thank you very much.  

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Is there anyone else that would like to speak and again I’d like to remind you that the Public Hearing will be held open so anyone that doesn’t have a chance to speak this evening would certainly have a chance to speak next month. I’ll start with this gentleman here who raised his hand first. 

Mr. Baynes: Good evening, my name is Harold Baynes; I live at 2 Charlile (Charlie) Circle. I have a question for the developers. I am mainly interested in the land right across the street from my residence, which is located in between Charlile Circle, Route 52 and on the southern side of Meadow Avenue. Pertaining to entrances to the Marketplace, How will that land be used at all? 

Ms. Post: Could you just explain how that has to do with the subdivision?

Mr. Baynes: I am talking about signage.

Ms. Post: The signage, go ahead.

Mr. Baynes: I see how it says here…Route 52 and Meadow Avenue, right? They have a monument sign going up there and its supposed to be an entranceway. 

Mr. Bainlardi: Inaudible.  

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you speak into the microphone? Thank you.

Mr. Bainlardi: The monument sign that we are proposing for the entrance at the Route 52, Meadow Avenue is a 5 ½ foot high sign on a stone base and it is 12 feet 7 inches wide. The actual signage panel within that sign is 3 feet 8 inches and it is proposed right at the entrance at 52 and is located…

Mr. Baynes: At 52 and Meadow Avenue?

Mr. Bainlardi: At 52 and Meadow Avenue, at the proposed round about, right here.

Mr. Baynes: So there will be a road created there? For an entrance?

Mr. Bainlardi: There is an access drive as you can see and it comes from 52 into the property and bifurcates the main access drive through the center of the shopping center.

Mr. Baynes: And that sign will go exactly on the corner?

Mr. Bainlardi: It’ll go right at the entrance to the shopping center, right inside our property.  

Mr. Baynes: And there are no other signs going to be in that area?

Mr. Bainlardi: No, no other signs.

Mr. Manley: Just a piggyback on his question, will that sign be lit at 52 and Meadow Avenue?

Mr. Bainlardi: That sign would be…is proposed to be lit, not internally illuminated because that is not permitted under the code but would be lit externally with lighting which is a…would illuminated from down below (inaudible).

Mr. Manley: Do you know approximate wattage? 

Mr. Bainlardi: I don’t but I could get you that information. 

Mr. Baynes: So as a follow up on that, there also will be a road (inaudible) for that section to go right through that area there?

Mr. Bainlardi: I’m sorry, I don’t….

Mr. Baynes: Will there be a road running through the area of that land there going to the Marketplace?

Mr. Bainlardi: Yes, there is a road as you can see right here coming from 52 and it comes down parallel to, I believe, is this Charlile Circle here?

Mr. Baynes: Yes I think so.

Mr. Bainlardi: It’s running parallel and it intersects the main entrance drive, which bifurcates the property.

Mr. Baynes: And there won’t be any store signs going up through road.

Mr. Bainlardi: No sir.

Mr. Baynes: Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. yes, here and then over here.

Ms. Kissam: From my perspective, I am a resident in the Town, Sandra Kissam, 1261 Union Avenue, from my perspective this entire hearing is based on a ‘what-if’. I do no know as I stand here whether in fact this 4-lot sub-division has had buyers or not. Has Costco bought? Has Best Buy bought? Is the purchase based on whether or not Wilder Balter secures variances for them? Is there any other assurance that there will not be other buyers? Is there any assurance that the other buyers would not want other variances or that the other buyers might not want to change the size of the buildings? Increase them or decrease them? Or place them differently on that lot?  I cannot understand how we should be forced to give consideration to all of these hypotheticals. This is a big hypothetical. This developer is full of surprises. From the very beginning, initial names I believe were much more high end, Macy’s, etc. etc. Every time we turn around, as residents, we discover that the plan has been tweaked. Calling for a 4-lot subdivision is a big tweak. I am also very concerned and was very disturbed to hear that people who are working with the Planning Board are tacitly giving approval to items, which should by rights be decided by the Board of Appeals, the Zoning Board. This disturbs me considerably. And with all due respect, Mr. Donovan I don’t understand why you should be an attorney for both the Planning Board and the Zoning Board. I raise that because it makes me uncomfortable. Now if you have not yet subdivided this lot then how can Wilder and Balter represent the wishes of the planned new owners? And how do we know at what point this is in terms of transferring these properties? And how can you go through a full EIS process with a purported owner who has control over the property and then not wonder what the environmental review would be for the 4-lot subdivision? I truly believe this is the cart before the horse. There is no question. I feel another…there’s something else I feel very strongly, this property is going to be at the ‘gateway to our community’. I have a vivid image of a pylon down at Wal-Mart in Harriman. Is that what we’re going to look like?  Is that what we’re heading for? Is that the disregard we have for our existing residential neighborhoods and for our residents that they should sit here and be cut down like a forest and in fact should be subjugated to the whims of this developer? Whims, I use that word not lightly. I use it seriously. That’s my comment.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Mr. Davis.

Mr. Davis: My name is Russell Davis; I live at 145 South Plank Road. My question I’d like for you to consider is, I am on 52 and I assume that’s probably the north side of this development I believe. I’m kind of hoping you would consider in the signage that they don’t put those big fluorescent and neon signs up on the large buildings which would shoot back towards 52 which basically is all residential homes along that portion of the development what I would consider the back end of the development. So if you would consider that I would appreciate it and the other thing I had was…are the retailers that have purchased a parcel of land from the developers are they also considered part of that 1.6% of signage or…? 

(Inaudible)

Mr. Davis: They are. O.K. That’s what I wanted to know whether they could put more signage up…O.K. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. O.K. There’s…I saw…you can go and then there’s 

someone why in the back I just see a hand up.

Mr. Murphy: Someone behind me?

Chairperson Cardone: Right but you can go ahead and go then that person will be next.

Mr. Murphy: My name is Mike Murphy I live 6 Hill Top Avenue in Newburgh. I’d like for the gentleman with the checkered jacket to stand up please and put the big box up there, with the big sign on it. How much higher is that sign going to be over the top of the building?

Ms. Gennarelli: (to Mr. Bainlardi) Excuse me; you are going to have to grab that mic again, thank you. 

Mr. Bainlardi: If I understand your question correctly, none of the signage would rise above the parapet of the building.

Mr. Murphy: Well, it certainly looks like it there. You know these signs (presentations boards) are so small. I am surprised you don’t have something everyone can see.

Mr. Bainlardi: I’d be more than happy to stay a bit after and you can come up.

Mr. Murphy: No, I am going to do it right now.

Mr. Bainlardi: Come on up.

Mr. Murphy: No I can see it now. I just want to know how much higher that Best Buy sign is going to be above the top edge of the building.

Mr. Bainlardi: It will not rise above the parapet.

Mr. Murphy: All right. Now is that thing going to be lighted all night?

Mr. Bainlardi: No sir.

Mr. Murphy: It will not?

Mr. Bainlardi: No. Internally illuminated signs are not permitted.

Mr. Murphy: How much noise from all the rap music are we going to get blasting because we live right behind that? Now what’s going to be the controlling of that booming?  

Mr. Bainlardi: I am not sure what you’re referring to.

Mr. Murphy: You’re not sure. I don’t think anyone is sure.

Mr. Bainlardi: It’s a retail…

Mr. Murphy: Yeah, I know what it is. O.K. well you answered my question anyway. Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Murphy: But as far as directions for these signs, you go down to the Commons down near Woodbury and if you don’t know where you are going all you have to do is ask a person and they will tell you. You could save yourself a couple of hundred thousand dollars in signs.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. And there was a lady in the back I believe.

Ms. Stelsraech: My name is Elizabeth Stelsraech; I live at 106 Fern Avenue. Two questions, the first one would be for the representatives of Mr. Wilder: do you already have approvals on your Permits that were required?

Mr. Bainlardi: I am not sure which Permits you are referring to but I can take you through that quickly. If you’re referring to Agency Permits, if you’re talking specifically the DOT, we do not have DOT Permits as of yet. Actually we have a Temporary Construction Access Permit from Route 300. We have conceptual approval from the DOT for all three access roads points and the plans are in the final design stage where we’re simply responding to technical requests from the DOT’s Planning Department, technical engineers on the designs, whether its with respect to drainage improvements, turning lanes, so on and so forth.

Chairperson Cardone: I don’t think that mic is on.

Mr. McKelvey: That mic is not on.

Mr. Bainlardi: Is that better? Also we …the Army Corp of Engineers, we do not have a final permit from the Army Corp of Engineers either at this point. We have a complete application has now been received by the Army Corp and we expect that a notice of complete application would be published by the Army Corp within the next couple of weeks. The DEC is a coordinated review with the Army Corp so the DEC will not act on the water quality certification that they are required to act on until a publication has been initiated by the Army Corp of Engineers. And those are the three main agencies that we’d be looking for Permits from. In addition, we are getting ready to submit our application to the Orange County Department of Health for our water connection.

Ms. Stelsraech: My question then would be to the Board? You’re going to perhaps decide to give them variances before we even have Permits in place. Several people have referenced that you’re putting the cart ahead of the horse; you’re putting a wagon train ahead of the horse.

Mr. McKelvey: I think you were referred to us by the Planning Board.

Ms. Stelsraech: And it seems to be a policy paralysis.

Mr. McKelvey: We can only do what is sent to us.

Ms. Stelsraech: Simply my opinion.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. There was a lady over here first then we’ll go over here.

Mr. Hughes: If I may? A referral from the Planning Board is generic. It is not a positive or a negative thing. So for the public’s information and for the representatives of the developer as well, a referral might not be the right legal word. They send it to us because there is something missing; so don’t take into consideration that a referral is always a positive thing. I just like to clarify that. 

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Ms. Doderer: My name Elena Doderer, 83 Wintergreen Avenue, I would like to comment on the statements of the Planning Board meeting on December 20th which pertained to this meeting. Mr. Wilder said at that meeting and I quote from the minutes on the Town Website “I want to make sure that the public understands why they are even entertaining variances, when we hear the amount of variances that we’re requesting I just want to make sure that the public is fully aware of what’s happened in the past and what we’re requesting. The sign variance in the Town of Newburgh has not been changed for many years and most developers ask for sign variances because the amount of signage you’re permitted under the Ordinance is significantly less than anything that is typical. The Town Board for a variety of reasons, I guess, has just not made the changes to their Ordinance. So the Ordinance, the variances that we’re requesting they’re consistent with other communities and actually other developments in the Town of Newburgh”. What Mr. Wilder fails to mention is that these issues were addressed in the new Master Plan, which he agreed to abide by also what is not mentioned is that he like other developers, in previous projects, asked for and were given variances. Does this not send a message that laws are meaningless to developers? Why do we even go through the motions of passing such laws if just as Mr. Wilder is doing the number and scope of variances will change the project so as to be completely unrecognizable from the original plan? I believe the newly proposed concept of the subdivision on the property is a perfect example of this and Mr. Wilder’s justification for such a subdivision is that two of the major purchasers or tenants of the property require it. I would like to know then how that becomes a problem for the Town as opposed to it being Mr. Wilder’s problem to find a remedy within the confines of his original plan? Thank you.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Giorgianni: Hello, I’m Tom Giorgianni, 33 Wintergreen. I just have a big concern some things that hit me were that there seems to be some primary knowledge that larger signs would be wanted and there might have been this need for variances early on but they were not brought up. To me, it seems to me that this looks like a maximization of profit not trying to maximize compliance to our Town Ordinance. If this was brought beforehand, I think what would have been said would…can this plan be reconfigured to meet the Ordinance better? There’s over one hundred acres, am I to understand that there is no way to move the buildings so that they do comply? There’s one hundred plus acres. That cannot occur so reconfiguration is not an option? And if that is an option, why is that not a self-induced hardship? It sounds to me by you saying ‘well no it’s not self-induced’ that that does not make it so. This is self-induced. You had the property. You knew the Ordinance before hand. Variances could have been sought earlier but you chose not to because you wanted to position it to a position that the plans were already almost finalized, to say ‘a reconfiguration is too late in the game’. That is not fair to the citizens of this Town and it is not fair to this Board and it is not fair to our Ordinances.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you.

Mr. Gebhard: John Gebhard, 48 Wintergreen Avenue, Town of Newburgh. The recently enacted Zoning Ordinance on buffers was long worked over to make it right and now we have a test of that to look at that. Did we really mean what we said when we established buffers? I’d like to paraphrasing Robert Frost good buffers make good neighbors. We don’t know who the future owners of these proposed lots will be and we should not take away their right to have appropriate buffers as defined by the law. Having good buffers in there also provides the opportunity for appropriate landscaping between the buildings and this would add certainly aesthetically to the big box stores. I want comment on the comment that Mr. Manley made about the example of the Target store in Crossroads as being a precedent for granting buffer reductions. That was an existing mall; there was footprint there. Even though they tore down the store and rebuilt a store there were certainly certain limitations there. We’ve got forest up there right now. The spade is not in the ground and its not too late for them to locate buildings with the adequate buffers. I also will shorten what I had to say here but also feel that there were certain problems here; we dealing with a proposal for lots not a real situation. We all know that frequently a subdivision configuration gets changed before its finalized so you are being asked to rule on something that hasn’t been finalized and I understand you are saying maybe perhaps that’s that the way it has to be. And regarding the sign variance I’d just like the Board to consider that an over abundance of signage along the streets and within the shopping mall and it’s the over abundance that creates the gaudy miracle mile appearance and thereby reducing attractiveness of our neighborhood. Please consider as you have been discussing carefully the size and the placement of this plethora of signs requested by the variance. I’d like to give copies of my comments.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes. Thank you. All the way in the back…

Mr. Williams: Jim Williams, Meadow Hill, Town of Newburgh. I was glad to hear the gentlemen bring up the DOT. I would like to know if he has or the developer has applied and received the approval from DOT to put a stoplight on Route 300? 

Mr. Bainlardi: The short answer is that we have applied. The stoplight has been conceptually approved by the DOT but we have not received a final permit.

Mr. Williams: Now it’s my understanding the entrance is going to be where the old gas station was but it’s also my understanding in order for that stoplight to be put in place you’re going to have to realign the exit on the current Newburgh Mall. Is that not correct? 

Ms. Post: That’s not correct.

Mr. Williams: How is the traffic going to get out of the mall on the southbound exit then?

Ms. Post: Well the way we’re proposing to do this and this was reviewed by the traffic consultant for the Planning Board was that the…our exit is directly opposite the Newburgh Mall and the light would then control traffic for the Newburgh Mall and for us.

Chairperson Cardone: I am sorry to stop you but traffic is not our jurisdiction and by law we really can’t go into that. I’m sorry.

Mr. Williams: But I do want you to be aware of the fact that if this lights been approved by the DOT that the current light by the north end of the Mall comes down.

Mr. McKelvey: That’s Planning Board.

Mr. Williams: I understand that but that comes down Planning Board or not that light comes down. Traffic lights are for traffic flow not traffic control. That light is coming down and that’s right from the Regional Director of DOT in Poughkeepsie.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have anyone else? 

Mr. Ghikas: I’ve been sitting so long my legs almost went dead. 

Chairperson Cardone: Could you state your name and address please?

Mr. Ghikas: Mike Ghikas, I have a three lot subdivision on Highland Avenue approved and I had to conform to what the Zoning Board and the Town Board had said about my subdivision and I would like to know if the Town Zoning Board does Walt Biler (Wilder Balter) or the Marketplace…do they have bought in back the right of way through that land? As the Zoning Board, you tell me, have they been notified that they cannot put anything on there 50 foot from their pole lines on either side of that acreage? And I would like to know has the Zoning Board been notified? Or does the Planning Board; does it go back to the Planning Board? Because it does involve where my lots are. It does involve right about where you want that four lot subdivision and I had to conform to so many things to get the variance from Tel and Tel that I finally got my right of way back and therefore I was able to do my lots but I would like to know from the Zoning Board has that right of way been relinquished by American Tel and Tel that nothing can be built on 50 foot on either side of those poles that run through that acreage?

Chairperson Cardone: I don’t know the answer to that. Would you know the answer to that Mr. Canfield? 

Mr. Canfield: No, I don’t.      

Chairperson Cardone: I don’t know the answer to that.

Mr. Ghikas: Well I would just like you to take it into consideration.

Chairperson Cardone: To think about it, yes, to try to find the information.

Mr. Ghikas: Try to find the information because the Town Planning before they gave me the variance to build on those lots I had to go through hell with Tel and Tel and finally the only way I got it back was they had to go through my property and they relinquished the right of way for my footage from Highland Avenue up to the back of the mall. And they are proposing a lot change near inside the internal where that line went through.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you for that information.        

Mr. Ghikas: I would just like the Zoning Board to aware.

Mr. Manley: Is that an overhead line or an underground line?

Mr. Ghikas: Overhead.

Mr. Manley: For AT&T.

Mr. Ghikas: AT&T and what happened was they wanted to come through and drop their lines to pull all their copper that they had in those Tel & Tel lines because it went from Fern Avenue, Highland Avenue all the way out to Union Avenue and by me giving them the right of way of coming in to my place to start their transportation of pulling down those copper lines but they wouldn’t give me the right of way back. They just said ‘I could drop them there and that’s it’. But it was too valuable the thing for them and then what happened was finally I said to them if you give me my right of way back I’ll let you come in from my property to pull you lines down and after haggling from Texas, from Albany, from New York, from everyplace, California finally they got back to me and said they relinquish the right of way on my property. So my property stopped when it hits the mall, Marketplace, and from there it goes all the way out to 300, zigzagged in out all the way around and if they didn’t give them their right of way back like the did to me then how can they…how can if the Zoning Board doesn’t know, you know, what do we do?  They screw me; the little guy, and the big guy could just go right around it? I would like…   

Chairperson Cardone: We’ll try to get that information. Thank you.

Mr. Ghikas: Thank you. 

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have…O.K. 

Mr. Carbone: Good evening and thank you for holding this public meeting. I think it’s very premature for us to be meeting here when there are so many open issues left with this project.

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, could you just identify yourself? Thank you.

Mr. Carbone: I’m sorry. Frank Carbone, Jr. from 39 Wintergreen Avenue, Town of Newburgh.  

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.

Mr. Carbone:  My concern is that we’re…everybody is on alert here, everybody brought up a lot of good points tonight and there seems like a lot of open issues and I don’t know how these other major agencies out there that are probably looking at plans that were presented to them months ago. And if they don’t know about all these concerns that we have and how can they approve these projects when these plans are in motion here or being proposed? So we’ve got, it was mentioned the DOT, the DEC, and I don’t know there’s several other agencies out there but I haven’t heard FAA or the new Federal Agency FAA, the new agency, I think it’s the Tri-State Agency, who are managing Stewart Airport. So they have some authority there and I don’t think anybody is from…I haven’t heard anybody from the FAA speaking or being put on notice that this project will affect flight operations at the airport because where this is being located now. This huge area is going to be nothing but a parking lot and fly roofs will impact airport operations and if you want me to explain that I can explain a little bit further. There was a concern about birds on the buffer lands west of the airport which is nothing but woods and fields but really the birds all congregate in parking lots, Wal-Mart, the Newburgh Mall, the seagulls are tremendous there and so this is detrimental to flights. And that mall is, the proposed mall is going to be located just about right under the main runway, which is runway #9 and 27. So all flights coming in, they either come in and they will be coming in right over top of that mall that I can assure you because the airports own rules are that when the planes are taking off on runway 9 which means they are heading towards the Hudson River and the Newburgh-Beacon Bridge they’re to go one to three miles and then bank left or right. And they don’t even have to bank left and right; I can assure you that they are going to be right over that mall. So my concern is the FAA, if they haven’t been contacted they should be contacted. They should be involved in this and also the State Agency that is going to be managing Stewart Airport. I’d also like to mention that it seems like we are reinventing the wheel here as far as large malls like this, these mega malls. Some night I think you ought to invite the folks down at Woodbury to a Town Board meeting, a Town Planning Board meeting and your own meeting here and just talk to these folks about what they are going through still down there and how they’re working under the gun and they’re losing money because it’s costing them, the Town down there, so much money to manage this place which is unmanageable and that’s Woodbury. So my advice is to invite some of those folks that are living with this down there so now we know what to expect here. And again, I think there was a mention, Mr. Gebhards mentioned about there is no spade in the ground yet and I would challenge that statement. A lot of people don’t know is they have put spades in the ground in those woods. They’ve been in there with heavy equipment, they’ve been digging big holes, they’ll cover them back up, they knock trees down, they’ve been coming in on the State land where they can’t get through with their equipment, they knock the trees down. So that’s been happening. I did send an e-mail out to the Supervisor and I copied as many people as I could that this was happening and I never heard one word back. No response. And there was another gentleman, Mr. Williams mentions about the traffic on Route 300 but…

Chairperson Cardone: I really have to stop you because we really can’t discuss that we really need to focus in on the signs and the subdivision.

Mr. Carbone: Yes, well I’m not asking you to discuss it this is a statement that I am making for the folks that are here in the event that I can’t speak again, is that traffic…

Chairperson Cardone: You will be able to speak again we are holding the meeting open,  the Public Hearing open so there will be another opportunity. 


Mr. Carbone: For the Zoning Board?

Chairperson Cardone: For the Zoning Board.

Mr. Carbone: Yes, but this is for everybody’s awareness I don’t expect anybody to answer me a question right now. This is a statement I want to make on this. When people find out that they are going to have a tough time getting out on 300 and they know the easy way out through the back door human nature is human nature. People take short cuts and now 52 is now going to be the dumping ground for this major mall. 52 is now the back door from this mega mall so that’s what…people take short cuts. That’s about all I have to say. I appreciate you hearing me out. Thank you. Good night.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. Do we have anyone else who would like to speak? As I stated before we will not be able to render a decision on this and I would…

Mr. McKelvey: Do you want a motion to…I’ll make a motion we hold this hearing over till next month.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Mr. Manley: I’d just like a little, just a quick discussion before we take the roll and that would be I’d like to get back to my original question and again I’d like to…

Mr. Donovan: Jim, I’m sorry, to interrupt this a second. I’m interrupting. I am sorry about that but I see people leaving I just want to be clear that the Board has decided that we’re going to vote presumably to hold this over to February. Do not wait for a notice in the mail. You will not get another notice. There is no obligation to send another notice so just be aware that the…

Audience: What date?

Mr. Donovan: February 28th.

Chairperson Cardone: The 28th of February.

Mr. Donovan: Sorry, I won’t do it again.

Mr. Manley: And to add to what you just said, you know, we encourage everybody to come back out again. It’s important you that are involved and that you are part of the process. So hopefully you’ll be back out. Getting back to my question, it it’s the Board’s pleasure, do you as the developers of the property have any problem with us seeking other consult with respect to your signage and running that through someone to determine specifically what I’m looking for is if we’re going to grant a variance that we grant the minimum that you need nothing more, nothing less. O.K.? But I’m not the expert but I’m also looking for, I think, if we’re going to get somebody obviously we would obviously need to have some sort of escrow or something that would insure that that consultant would be paid for. So I’m asking you as the representative of Balter Wilder is that something that you’re willing to move on tonight? Because obviously we are not going to be able to, it’s going to take time to find somebody.

Ms. Post: I think the key…

Mr. Bainlardi: What I was going to suggest is if we could confer internally and then, I suspect that this is not going to be an issue and certainly within your Board’s prerogative to seek whatever information or guidance you deem necessary but I’d like to discuss it internally and then we could get back to your lawyer quickly with an affirmative…

Mr. Donnelly: Yes, if you contact the Board and copy me that would be me that would be fine.

Ms. Post: Really I just want to mention that we would like to request that there would be some kind of time frame within which is done and so that it’s not something that’s out there for a long period of time and maybe we could come to agreement once you’ve chosen somebody to do this work that it be, you know, a reasonable amount of time within which the report will be done, completed and reported back to you.

Mr. Hughes: We should probably be able to give you a schedule at next meeting.

Ms. Post: O.K. Great.

Chairperson Cardone: And, actually the sooner we get the response from you the quicker we’ll be able to.

Mr. Hughes: If you respond to us with the information we’ve asked for.

Ms. Post: I see.

Mr. Hughes: And do you need a bill of materials for about what we are looking for or do you know what we want?

Ms. Post: I think we understand you would like to choose somebody who has some particular expertise.

Mr. Manley: Architectural signs experience and that is familiar with being able to determine visual, what’s visually going to work within that, within that mall and you know, do they need…for Best Buy, to visually have that work…do they need that three signs or will that consultant say no, two is fine or one is fine. Well then that’s going to weigh heavily on my decision but like I told you before I’m not the expert just like the Planning Board is not, they’re not all experts. They rely on consultants and when it comes to something like this and you’re telling me that having 12,000 sq ft is very important to you and if that’s very important to you then I think I need a set of eyes and an expert to look at it and tell me…this works, this doesn’t work, this maybe needs to be changed, this needs downsized and then we’re all speaking from a position of knowledge as opposed to just throwing back information that just isn’t useful. So with that…

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. We had a first and a second.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes, we did.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll Call.           

                                  John McKelvey: Yes

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Yes

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: The Public Hearing will be held open until February 28th and has been pointed out you will not receive new notices so please take note of that date. Thank you.

(Time Noted – 10:26 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 24, 2008               (Time Noted – 10:26 PM) 


ZINA HERNANDEZ



2 HILL RUN ROAD, NBGH







(73-19-1) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the side yards setbacks to keep two prior built decks.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Zina Hernandez, Two Hill Run Road. O.K. If we could take any other discussion out into the hallway so we can continue with our next applicant. O.K. Please proceed. 

Ms. Hernandez: My name is Zina Hernandez, I live at…well not yet…the address is Two Hill Run Road and we’re coming to apply for a variance for two prior built decks.

Chairperson Cardone: One of the things we had asked for was notice from the Code Compliance Department and I have received that. This letter is to notify the Zoning Board of Appeals that a site inspection was conducted at the above address to insure that the prior built decks were in compliance with the State Building Code. At the time of the inspection the decks were within the guidelines of the Code. Also note that the buried propane tank and the driveway issues are being addressed and will be corrected before a C.O. can be issued. I have a question on this. It says that the driveway issues were being addressed but that issue is very important; I think, to that one side deck, the driveway issue.

Mr. Mattina: George Zoutis when he does the final inspection, the driveway will be removed from 84’s property and will be located on Mrs. Hernandez’ property.

Ms. Drake: And the deck won’t need to be removed for that driveway? They have sufficient room with those decks?

Mr. Mattina: Yes. We can’t issue a C.O. with the driveway on State property so; she needs the C.O. for the house she needs to move the driveway. 

Chairperson Cardone: But the driveway would interfere with the side deck, this deck right here.

Mr. Mattina: No this would be the parking up front, the 40 feet; they need to make their driveway fit their property.

Chairperson Cardone: So you are saying they are going to come up here with it?

Mr. Mattina: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: Put that over here?

Mr. Mattina: Yes, that’s where it was proposed, that’s it needs to go.

Chairperson Cardone: That is with the grant for the variance for this deck here. 

Mr. Mattina: Either way they are moving it either way they are not going to get a C.O. for the house with the driveway there. That wasn’t discovered until brought in their paperwork for a final C.O.

Chairperson Cardone: Right.

Mr. Mattina: That when it was noticed and the C.O. cannot be issued the way it is.

Chairperson Cardone: And what is being addressed with the propane tank?

Mr. Mattina: The underground propane tank is being removed and will be secured in the flood zone the way it needs to be according to the State Code.

Ms. Drake: Do you still need to use propane then and not go to the gas that’s available on the street?

Mr. Mattina: Yes I was told today they’re working on it installing the tank below ground and in accordance with the flood zone.

Mr. Hughes: So they are going to stay with the propane? 

Ms. Hernandez: Yes, because Central Hudson said there’s no gas line back there.  

Mr. Hughes: I see. 

Mr. Manley: How long till these items are rectified?

Ms. Hernandez: Well Tuesday is when Porco is going to go out and they are going to dig up the tank and put in whatever they’ve got to do on Tuesday and the driveway will be done right after that. 

Mr. Hughes: Are any of these decks being removed?

Mr. Mattina: Well that’s up to you that’s why they need a variance.

Mr. Hughes: Well I mean, you’re talking about changing that driveway, where is it going to end up?

Mr. Mattina: The driveway needs to be in front of the house where it was proposed. 

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Mr. Mattina: Between that covered front porch…

Mr. Hughes: Over on this side?

Mr. Mattina: Directly in front of the house there is a 40-foot setback here, they have 40 feet to play with.

Mr. Hughes: Right, I see.

Mr. Mattina: As long it’s on their property, that’s all…

Chairperson Cardone: Do we any other questions from the Board? Any questions or comments from the public?

Ms. Santory: I have.

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

Ms. Santory: I am Jeanette Santory on the east side of the property behind. I’m at 85 Creek Run Road. Last time we were here we addressed the issue about privacy and possibly asking them to do something about the deck that is open invades on our privacy in our backyard.

Chairperson Cardone: That is not the deck that is before us. The deck that is before us is the one on the side and in the back.

Ms. Santory: It was a suggestion made at the last hearing about screening.

Mr. Hughes: Which one are you talking about here? Is this you here?

Ms. Santory: This is me here.

Mr. Hughes: Yes. 

Ms. Santory: And there is a deck, this is my side fence here.

Mr. Hughes: So it’s this deck she is referring to here.

Mr. Donovan: On the north side of the property.

Chairperson Cardone: But that deck is not before us. The decks that are not in compliance are the one on the side and in the back.

Ms. Santory: Well this deck does face my property. And where exactly is this proposed driveway going to go? Where is 40 feet? There is no 40 feet in front. This is the front of the house.

Mr. Hughes: They were talking about here for the driveway.

Ms. Santory: There is a driveway there now.

Mr. Maher: I think they are going to park in front of the house itself, in front of the house going in the driveway.

Ms. Santory: Now the front of that house being on this side where the State property is?

Mr. Maher: Correct. No, no the front of the house where the driveway came in.

Ms. Santory: (Inaudible)...facing Creek Run Road This is facing our rear…rear...

Mr. Hughes: This is where the driveway is now and they are talking about putting it over here. This is you here?

Ms. Santory: Right. So this is Hill Run Road? And this is how they go in right now through my neighbor’s property, Hill Run Road. There is a driveway there now.

Mr. Hughes: Yes. That’s going to be moved over to here.

Ms. Santory: And what about the drainage that we brought to your attention at the last meeting that is going into the creek? Was that resolved? Is this…is DEC a…?

Mr. Hughes: The drainage, I’m sorry, about the flooding?

Mr. Mattina: It’s a flood zone.

Ms. Santory: All right, but it’s draining into the creek.

Mr. Mattina: But the creek is all part of the flood zone.

Ms. Santory: That’s DEC protected.

Chairperson Cardone: That’s not under the jurisdiction of this Board.

Ms. Santory: So who do I approach this with? You’re pushing, you’re going to push flooding and water problems onto our property if this pipe wasn’t there so now it’s going into something that’s…

Chairperson Cardone: I have to state what I stated before when we were talking about the last application, we can only deal with what we are looking at which is the two decks, the one on the side and the one in the back. Now as they pertain to the flooding we could look at that but if they don’t pertain to the flooding then it is not under our jurisdiction.

Mr. Hughes: That would be the Building Department for the flooding and the pipes but here’s the two decks that we are ruling on tonight. That’s on this side of the house. It’s the back deck here and this deck here and the reason being this is the envelope where you can build and they exceeded that envelope that dotted line is what they can build within.

Mr. Santory: O.K. I have no further questions.

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. Thank you. To we have any other comments on this particular application? I would entertain a motion to close the public hearing?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion we close the public hearing.

Ms. Eaton: I’ll second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: 

Mr. McKelvey: I have a question. 

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K.

Mr. McKelvey: This started in November? Or was it last month?

Ms. Gennarelli: Last month.

Mr. McKelvey: I wasn’t here so I’ll abstain.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K.

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Abstain

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

(Time Noted – 10:36 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 24, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 11:01 PM)

ZINA HERNANDEZ



2 HILL RUN ROAD, NBGH







(73-19-1) R-3 ZONE

Applicant is seeking area variances for the side yards setbacks to keep two prior built decks.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Zina Hernandez at 2 Hill Run Road, area variances for the side yards setbacks to keep two prior built decks. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? 

Ms. Drake: I actually feel that the front, the larger of the two decks is very large and that if there is any way that that deck can be reduced in size that that be considered. I know you have a contractor or somebody submit a plan to us to show how the deck can be reduced in size; I would like to see if that’s available.

Mr. Manley: I think that, also in line with that, that maybe we could reserve our decision and perhaps that would allow the applicant to…for us to insure that the tanks are taken out of the ground and secured and that the driveway is corrected and between that time they can maybe submit those plans. I think that’s a good suggestion.

Mr. Hughes: Would it be possible for you to put that in the form of a motion as a condition for approval?

Chairperson Cardone: Well I think what he is saving is that we reserve decision until we see a deck that is more in compliance than the that’s currently there.

Mr. Hughes: So you want some paperwork back from a contractor.

Chairperson Cardone: Right. We would want something back that shows a deck that’s smaller than what is there right now. I don’t know if anybody has any suggestions for how that can be accomplished.

Mr. Maher: One of the considerations you have the way the deck is built now, you do have a center support in it. If split the deck in half basically, halfway the distance to the lot line there that would achieve, the width would remain the same, the depth would change from your lot line back to the middle of the deck there achieving a smaller deck area, still the same width but a small deck area and a smaller variance is needed.

Ms. Hernandez: I guess we have to, I’m mean, I’m just saying I’ve been waiting and waiting a long time for this, can’t the Building Inspectors oversee this? Because we’ve been waiting and paying the mortgage since September and you know, we just keep waiting and waiting, months and months go by and…

Chairperson Cardone: Well the alternative could be to deny the application. So this is another possibility looking at something that’s not quite as extensive as the deck that is there right now.

Mr. Hughes: You do understand Mr. Maher’s recommendation about cutting it back to where the support beam is to reduce the size?

Ms. Hernandez: To the first one?

Mr. Hughes: Maybe the Building Department could explain it to you and nurture you through this so that you can see what we’re looking for. O.K. Get in touch with them and work that out.

Mr. Maher: Jerry, there is a center girder, down the center of it, it’s about 15 out from the house, there is a center girder in there, they can take it back to that point there and still enable to support the deck and have a small cantilever there but it would be less of a variance. 

Mr. Hughes: Parallel with the house.

Mr. Canfield: Right.

Mr. Hughes: I guess we’ll wait for the return on that information then and hold our decision? 

Chairperson Cardone: Yes.

(Time Noted – 11:04 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 24, 2008               (Time Noted – 10:35 PM) 


RICHARD & KARA CAMPBELL

23 KINGS HILL TERRACE, WLKL







(3-1-5.12) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an interpretation and/or area variances for the maximum height, the maximum allowed square footage for accessory structures and the maximum allowed storage of four (4) vehicles to keep a prior built garage.  

Chairperson Cardone: Our next applicant Richard and Kara Campbell. This was also held over from last month.

Ms. Campbell: I am Kara Campbell, 23 Kings Hill Terrace, Wallkill, we’re here to continue our application for an area variance to maintain our shed as built and to maintain our accessory structures as built.

Chairperson Cardone: And I have the memo from the Building Department, on January 9, 2008 Joseph Mattina and myself measured the accessory structure in question at the Campbell Residence. The height of the structure was measured to be 16 feet 6 inches on the side that faces Fox Hill Road. That was the question that we had. 

Ms. Campbell: We’re actually worse off that we were the last time we were here based on that measurement.

Chairperson Cardone: And I also have a letter from the Town of Plattekill Planning Board which says the Planning Department has received a copy of the variance request regarding the Campbell’s accessory structure. The Planning Board has no issue with this. I’ve made copies for our file and am returning your map and application. That’s because you’re near the Ulster line.

Ms. Campbell: That was interesting. I had no idea about that. 

Mr. Manley: Wouldn’t that be more near the Town of Shawangunk than Plattekill?

Mr. Donovan: At least they had no issue with it.

Ms. Campbell: Thank goodness because we weren’t aware of it at all.

Ms. Gennarelli: This section over here is Plattekill over here on the map.

Ms. Drake: Grace, could I ask again what the height was, you said 16 point something?

Chairperson Cardone: 16’ 6”.  And there was also the issue that this was not going to be a garage. 

Mr. Campbell: Correct.

Ms. Campbell: We don’t use it as a garage. There is no driveway to it. There is no door.

Chairperson Cardone: It does not have garage doors on it.

Ms. Campbell: There is no door. There’s no cars in it.

Chairperson Cardone: Any other questions, comments? Any other questions or comments from the public? I would entertain a motion to close the public hearing?

Ms. Drake: I’ll make a motion we close the hearing.

Ms. Eaton: Second.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Abstain

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Abstain

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 10:38 PM)

------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 24, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 11:04 PM)

RICHARD & KARA CAMPBELL

23 KINGS HILL TERRACE, WLKL







(3-1-5.12) A/R ZONE

Applicant is seeking an interpretation and/or area variances for the maximum height, the maximum allowed square footage for accessory structures and the maximum allowed storage of four (4) vehicles to keep a prior built garage.  

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Richard and Kara Campbell, 23 Kings Hill Terrace, Wallkill seeking an area variance for the maximum height, the maximum allowed square footage for accessory structures and the maximum allowed storage of four (4) vehicles to keep a prior built garage. I think we discussed last month that it was not going to be more than four vehicles because it is not in effect a garage. It does not even have a door.

Ms. Drake: Correct. 

Chairperson Cardone:  This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? Any discussion? 

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion to approve this application? 

Ms. Eaton: I’ll make a motion to approve.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a second?

Ms. Drake: I’ll second it.

Ms. Gennarelli: Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Abstain

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: No

                                  Michael Maher: Abstain

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Chairperson Cardone: So the motion is carried. Thank you.

(Time Noted – 11:06 PM)

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 24, 2008       (Time Noted 10:38 PM)

FINKELSTEIN & PARTNERS 

1279 ROUTE 300, NBGH







(95-1-15.1) IB ZONE

Applicant is area variances for the allowable signage by street frontage and allowable one freestanding sign per lot to erect signs.

Chairperson Cardone: We had already closed the Public Hearing on Finkelstein & Partners. We were just awaiting the renderings and so we should be able to make a decision on that. At this time we’d like to adjourn the meeting so we may confer with counsel over questions that have arisen from tonight’s meeting. If I could ask in the interest of time if you would step into the hallway we will call you back in shortly.  







(Time Noted 10:39 PM)


---------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------

ZBA MEETING – JANUARY 24, 2008       (Resumption for decision: 11:06 PM)

FINKELSTEIN & PARTNERS 

1279 ROUTE 300, NBGH







(95-1-15.1) IB ZONE

Applicant is area variances for the allowable signage by street frontage and allowable one freestanding sign per lot to erect signs.

Chairperson Cardone: On the application of Finkelstein & Partners, 1279 Route 300, seeking area variances for the allowable signage by street frontage and allowable one freestanding sign per lot to erect signs. This is a Type II Action under SEQRA. Do we have discussion on this application? If you recall we had asked for a rendering of the pylon sign and we received that. Any discussion on this?

Mr. Manley: The renderings from you were very helpful. And what I did, especially with the larger signs, I wanted to take some time and to go back out to the site again and I stood over by Newburgh Nissan pulled in there and I kind of wanted to envision the sign because it’s 30 feet by 7 feet and its on both sides looking from 17K and 300. I really, I’m fine with the two signs that are there on the entrances I think they’re great. I just think that having the other signs on the building are going to be really excessive, really an overage. Also showing them that they are internally illuminated. And I think that’s an issue, correct?

Chairperson Cardone: I think it’s not allowed.

Mr. Manley: So that is definitely something that, you know, I would take issue with but I fine with the two that were presented for pylons.

Chairperson Cardone: I feel the same way. I think that the pylon signs really looked very nice. The ones on the building seemed quite excessive to me, quite unnecessary too. 

Ms. Drake: I agree with that.

Mr. Hickey: May I ask a question? The last time we were here if I understand your comment correctly the internal illumination is not allowed on the wall signs?

Mr. Manley: Correct.

Mr. Hickey: Because certainly the application stated that originally and it wasn’t brought up at the previous meeting at all so we were left with the impression that the wall signs were fine and the real question was on the pylon signs and so we reduced the size of the pylon signs with the guidance of the Board in the discussion we had and just trying to get a sense of the direction we are going now versus where we were last month.

Mr. Manley: Well I think to a degree I was wrestling with it a little bit, yes, no, yes, no and I went back out to the site, after the meeting I went back out to the site and I wanted to kind of get a feel for what it would look like and my concern was…they are large. When we’re talking 30 feet and I’m trying to envision the 30 feet and I had the piece that you gave us with the sign on the building itself and I was trying to actually envision that and part of the zoning variance for the area variance is to approve or to give the person what they need, the minimum variance that they need in order to affect the result that they need, you know, that’s reasonable and I felt that the two signs coming in from each of the directions I think people are going to be focused when they’re driving at two pylons signs. So I really felt that the two pylon signs would best affect what your, what you are trying to achieve in granting the variance.

Mr. Donovan: Well if I could just…in terms of the internally illuminated, it jumped out at me when I looked at the rendering and I went back and looked at the application and the minutes and I didn’t see a reference to it until you just said, so I didn’t realize until I looked at the sign location thing that you did with these. And down at the bottom, fair enough, it says internally illuminated. It actually does. I didn’t see that last month. If I had seen that I would have brought that up. 

Mr. Rones: We’re basically modeling this after what was there and we figured if what was good enough for a bank it would be good enough for us and what’s good enough for Barnes & Noble for example or Chili’s or it just seems we are being treated very differently.

Mr. Donovan: Relative to the size or the internal illumination?

Mr. Rones: On all of those issues.

Mr. Donovan: Are those internally illuminated signs?

Mr. Manley: Which, Chili’s?

Mr. Donovan: He said, Chili’s, Barnes & Noble… 

Mr. Manley: Well Chili’s isn’t up yet so I don’t know.

Mr. Hughes: I know what Chili’s sign is going to look like and it’s nothing comparative.

Mr. Donovan: But is it internally illuminated?

Chairperson Cardone: Is Barnes & Noble internally illuminated?

Mr. Canfield: I think that’s internally illuminated it comes from the new design guidelines.

Mr. Hughes: It does.

Mr. Canfield: Now the question is, does that apply to their sign?

Mr. Donovan: What does the sign ordinance say?

Mr. Hughes: If I could, Joe (Rones)…?

Mr. Rones: I beg your pardon?

Mr. Hughes: If I could, part of what we’re instructed in State seminars about what we’re looking for and things of that nature is, your particular business as the law firm isn’t going to bring any people in by having a 30 foot sign on the wall. When they go to go your law firm they know approximately where they are heading and the pylon signs assist them getting on to the site. One of the things we have to take into consideration is by putting up a 30 foot long billboard on a building we are making distractions for drivers. So, we’re cautioned against doing things of that nature unless you have some substantial argument that those signs are going to bring customers in. I don’t know.

Mr. Rones: Well we could certainly develop that argument. I mean that’s why we keep television advertising and advertising in other media for the purpose of bringing people in.

Mr. Hughes: Sure.

Mr. Rones: To have that name recognition…

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me; could you use the microphone please, it’s going in the tape. Sorry. Thank you.

Mr. Rones: What we’re really concerned about is I don’t know that under current commercial rules and professional rules that it’s really appropriate to distinguish between enterprises such as gas stations, car dealerships, big box book stores, big box home supply stores and other establishments versus our establishment and it seems to us that we should be treated the same as the other commercial establishments.

Mr. Hughes: I think that you’ll see that if you review all the places that you’ve cited they have pylon signs and not signs on the building. Nissan has a tower, Barnes & Noble has a tower, everybody…

Mr. Rones: Well they do but Nissan also has a sign on the building.

Mr. Hughes: But, it’s not illuminated.

Mr. Rones: Well, you know, I’ll have to take a look at all that.

Mr. Donovan: Here’s what the Code says and I don’t know how you guys have interpreted it. Under prohibited types of signs and lighting, the following types of signs and lights shall be prohibited: 2) any sign for which illuminated provided is not diffused or indirect or which is arranged so as to directly illuminate neighboring properties in a residential districts or any public street. So the key phrase, I think, for our discussion is, I don’t know why they say it in the negative and not in the positive but in any event, any sign for which illumination provided is not diffused or indirect. Meaning that it has to be diffused or indirect. If I showed up with a conforming size and I said I wanted an internally illuminated sign, would you give me a permit? Oh, you won’t answer that question, huh? 

Mr. Canfield: (inaudible)

Ms. Gennarelli: Excuse me, I’m sorry, could you use the microphone? 

Mr. Canfield: Sure.

Ms. Gennarelli: Sorry. Thank you.

Mr. Canfield: Jerry Canfield, Fire Inspector/Zoning Inspector, what we do with signage right now, refer it to the Planning Board and their consultants for their review, Karen Arent. Especially in light of the new design guidelines, that’s how we handle the signage.

Mr. Donovan: I just want to be consistent because if in fact there is twenty-five signs in Town that are all internally illuminated then we’re not in a position to tell these folks that they can’t have it.

Mr. Canfield: Right. The question that I have is, there’s more of an emphasis on the internally illuminated in the design guidelines, which as I understand it and as we have applied it applies to new construction. But if you have an existing building that’s where I’m uncertain how that applies to an existing building sign that’s being replaced.

Chairperson Cardone: But the sign that was there was not a legal sign. It had no if I understand from our last meeting it was not…

Mr. Hughes: It was never approved.

Chairperson Cardone: It was never approved.

Mr. Manley: Kleinfelder. 

Chairperson Cardone: So if it was never approved then therefore we would say there was no sign there.

Mr. Hickey: Are you referring to the Fleet signs that were on the building or the Kleinfelder sign? 

Mr. Hughes: No, the investment group.

Mr. Manley: The Kleinfelder.

Mr. Rones: No, well that sign has been removed. We understand that sign was illegal and we asked the landlord to have the tenant remove the sign and that’s what happened. But what we did was try to conform these signs to the Fleet Bank signs that had been there for many, many years and I’ve been in this area for a long time I don’t remember anybody thinking those signs were particularly obtrusive or an eye-sore or did anything but identify the property and the occupant of the property. In fact, there were several additional signs that Fleet had about the property that we didn’t propose here so I think we had come to reasonably expect that similar signage wouldn’t be a problem and I fail to see how it is a problem in view of the other signage right in the area. In fact, right next-door as I mentioned at the last meeting the gas station is essentially one big sign so I can’t see how this diminishes the neighborhood in any way, shape or form.   

Chairperson Cardone: I think the height of the sign makes it different than the gas station which is really at eye level rather than something that is so high up in the air.

Mr. Hughes: I agree. I think one of the things, sleeping in the hammock of discontinuance, the Fleet Bank signs were removed a long time ago so whether you have an opportunity to slip in on that or not I’m not sure, we have to do some research. I don’t know what the Building Department thinks or what our attorney would suggest in that area but because the Fleet Bank have gone so long I don’t if you could use that and as my memory serves me the signs weren’t quite as large as what you intend to put on there now.

Mr. Hickey: Actually the square footage is identical to the Fleet signs that were there and that’s how we arrived at those sizes as the original application the dimensions of these signs were a little different they were 8’ x 29 ½’ and 10’ x 29 ½’ and with their new logo designs we had to reallocate that square footage and that’s what drove the sizes that are here. So you’ll see the original application, the square footage is the same now and if I could comment on one thing Mr. Donovan regarding the internal illumination I think it said the light needed to be diffused in all internally illuminated signs and particular to this the light is diffused through the sign face. So I would say that it meets the definition of what was read here earlier for illumination. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any further discussion?

Ms. Drake: Will the signs be lit all night? 

Mr. Hickey: Yes, as referenced they’re dusk/dawn.

Ms. Drake: Oh, it’s right here.

Mr. Hickey: Right. Certainly we would take recommendations from the Board. 

Chairperson Cardone: Any further discussion?

Ms. Eaton: Why do you think those signs will help if they’re so far up in the air?

Mr. Hickey: Well certainly they’re visible, there is a lot of traffic in the area and… 

Ms. Eaton: But you’re pylon signs will be more visible.

Mr. Hickey: Well, yes and no, you’re pylon sign is perpendicular to 300 when you’re exiting off of, and I apologize I am not familiar with all the road names around here, exiting off of the Thruway, you get off of there and you see the sign and there is identification there, they’re marketing clearly with the…again what Mr. Rones said about the television and all the stuff that they do, the business that they’re in is when people are in that situation the identity of who Finkelstein & Partners are is very, very important to them. And their footprint and brand recognition is just as important to them as it is to Best Buy or Barnes & Noble and Lowe’s and all the big box retailers. It’s really the same thing and when someone is in need of that they, you know, their name would be repetitively out there that’s how they generate their business, their new business.

Ms. Eaton: You don’t have a sign on the building on 9W, do you?

Mr. Hickey: Yes.

Ms. Eaton: On the side there?

Mr. Rones: Yes, there’s a sign facing so that westbound traffic on North Plank Road, there is a sign on the building there.

Mr. Manley: A pylon sign or a sign like that.

Mr. Rones: No, there’s a sign on the building.

Mr. Hickey: Yes, there’s the pylon sign…

Chairperson Cardone: I don’t believe…it’s not light though.

Mr. Hickey: Yes. The pylon sign is lit. 

Chairperson Cardone: It’s lit?

Mr. Hickey: Yes, the sign on the…

Chairperson Cardone: The sign on the building is lit?

Mr. Hickey: The sign on the building is lit as well.

Mr. Hughes: But that sign on the building is considerably smaller than what you’re talking about here as well?

Mr. Hickey: Well I think there is an appropriateness of scale as well.

Mr. Hughes: Sure, for the face of the building.

Mr. Hickey: Well the space of the building, I mean, this building is very large building. It’s their headquarters, their world headquarters, the signage that was done on the 9W is appropriate for the size of that building and also the view and distance of the traffic that’s there and apparently believe that the signage package that’s been prepared for this building within all those parameters still meets that criteria appropriately. 

Mr. Rones: In other words, given the height of the building on Route 300, it would be necessary to have the signage on the building of that size in order to be legible from somebody coming up Route 17K or driving northbound on 300.

Mr. Hickey: And also to the internal illumination, when you look at the design of their signs and if you think of the 9W sign, the background of their sign is a burgundy color. It’s, not that this is necessarily relevant from a (inaudible) standpoint, but when it come to the amount of light that comes out of these signs it’s very different than a white background sign with burgundy letters. There is a substantial amount of diffusion in all of their signage due to the black area on the sign as well as the burgundy and stuff with that. So it’s a very professional image that’s projected through this sign package and their branding across their footprint of all their locations.

Chairperson Cardone: No further discussion? 

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone:  Do we have a motion for approval on this application? 

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion for disapproval on this application?

No Response.

Chairperson Cardone: I need some type of a motion.

Mr. Hughes: Well how about a motion that is a little bit of a hybrid?

Chairperson Cardone: O.K. I’m listening.

Mr. Hughes: How about a motion for approval for the pylon signs with the possibility of eliminating the other signs or reducing their size? Can we make a condition? I mean, first of all I would like to check with our counsel are we dancing on the edge of a precedential situation here by approving a sign that’s not permitted in that use on an old building.

Mr. Donovan: I am frequently asked that question. I’ll give you the answer that I always give which everything that you do establishes some precedent. Now every application also stands on it’s own merits and every application has some differences but we saw tonight that someday down the road, someone is going to come up with a decision that’s going to say you granted with the 300% variance and they have three decisions that this Board made in the last couple of years at least two decisions where we granted for the big box developments large sign variances. This is a large variance, as well so will we be establishing a precedent to a degree? Absolutely.

Mr. Hughes: Does the applicant have any suggestions to enlighten the Board about how we can jockey this to accommodate your need and ours as well?

Mr. Rones: Well based on the minutes of the last meeting, I believe there was a discussion between you and Mr. Hickey and I believe it was concurred in by at least some of the other Board Members that…

Chairperson Cardone: I don’t see anyone else concurring…

Mr. Rones: Well I wasn’t here at that point so…but in any event…

Chairperson Cardone: But you’re correct it was Mr. Hughes speaking with Mr. Hickey; I have the minutes right here.

Mr. Rones: And at that time, it was suggested that the pylon signs be reduced from 72 sq. ft. to 60 sq. ft. and that earlier in the meeting there was a request that we make those…design those pylons so that other tenants could come on to that pylon if the need arose in the future. So, we’ve made…we’ve accommodated those redesigns and it appeared from the discussions that were had when we were here last month that there was no issue with respect to the signs on the building façade. So, we have tried to accommodate the interests that were expressed by the Board when we were here last time and as far…

Chairperson Cardone: If I could just correct something that…Mr. Manley did concur with what Mr. Hughes had said but then he also said that he went back out there and looked at it. There was no vote taken on it.

Mr. Rones: Yes. No, no I understand there was no vote taken at that time. But that was the discussion we came back with the redesign as requested. Regarding the signs up on the building and Mr. Hickey can address this better than I because he is an expert and I would just be paraphrasing now what he might present. But based on the size of the building, the height of the building, this sign is not out of proportion to the building and is of a size and configuration necessary so that it’s legible from down below and as I say based on what was there before not saying that because it was there before we are entitled to it but based on what was there before there was nothing extravagant or extraordinary about the Fleet Bank signage. It was quite nice actually and our signage isn’t proposed to be any bigger and I don’t think it’s going to be any less nice and in fact, the signage up on that building I think enhances it rather than detracts from it. But that’s my esthetic viewpoint.

Mr. Manley: What would prevent another tenant coming before the Board and perhaps asking for a similar signage on another part of the building? And I guess the concern to is how you handle that if you were a Board Member?

Mr. Hickey: Well, actually I think we’ve discussed that already at our last meeting and we’ve already accommodated that by…if I could comment on that in a second, I just want to…

Mr. Manley: Well, with the pylons, I understand that that could place something on those…

Mr. Hickey: Yes, you’ll remember, we came back and we reduced the pylon signs specifically to…

Mr. Manley: …to address that.

Mr. Hickey: …to address that and added it in there and the remedy to that has already been spoke with Mr. Donovan is that if somebody else wanted a building sign, they would have to come to this Board to seek that approval. You’re remedy is already in place; by the fact that the pylon signs that those tenants go there. Also on top of that, certainly Finkelstein has and I may be speaking incorrectly about this, but they have first option on any additional space that becomes available is as well as the rights to purchase that building on there eventually. So I think the Board’s already created that remedy with us coming back and developing the sign and the pylon signs we have designed actually accommodate quite reasonably sized signs.

Mr. Manley: What we’re saying what happens if somebody…if a fairly large tenant or a very large company that has needs or wants large exposure like you, comes before this Board and says we want to propose the same size sign as they have there and they want us to rule on it? My question is, it kind of puts us in a precarious position, I mean in retrospect. Once we do it, it’s done. There’s no going back. We’ve only got one shot at it on the gate when you make a decision like this.

Mr. Hickey: If you could explain that last statement just a little more so I could respond appropriately. You said once you do it’s done…

Mr. Manley: Once we make the decision…

Mr. Hickey: Yes.

Mr. Manley: …to allow signage, it’s done, there’s no going back, you can’t go back and redo it once it’s done, it’s done.

Mr. Hickey: Correct.  

Mr. Manley: So I think that you really have to look at…

Mr. Hickey: I think if I could reference the conversation to a prior applicant tonight is that certainly if someone comes in as a tenant, they need to do their due diligence and see what’s allowed and if it’s that important it may cause them to not lease space in that building if it’s not available to them. But that’s a future scenario again that we can’t necessarily speculate on who may or may not want to go in there and what kind of signage do they may or may not want with that. If I could speak to the size of the signs as far as how they are going to look? You know, one thing with legibility of a sign has to do with the height of the letter, the stroke width and if I could talk about Fleet for a moment?

The Fleet sign would certainly be readable from a much greater distance and you know it’s a much thicker letter. Finkelstein & Partners is very long name, they use a very thin font for their logo so again a sign that’s appropriate like this, the sign that’s sized this way is not going scream out at anybody. You know those Fleet signs were readable from a much greater distance than this sign is. That’s why we’re really looking for the size that we are on top of that. If you begin to reduce these things very much than they become very ineffective for what our client is attempting to do here. So, again Mr. Manley I don’t know if it answers you’re question about someone else coming in to do that and again you’re remedy is no, we won’t allow anymore signage on there. That is the square footage and if you want this something has to be worked out with Finkelstein.

Mr. Hughes: If I may?

Mr. Hickey: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: Joe (Rones).

Mr. Rones: Yes, sir.

Mr. Hughes: You have first option on the building and if it evolves to that point that you are going to take that building over would you have any qualms or problems with saying to prospective tenants that there will be no more signs on the building?

Mr. Rones: No, of course not.

Mr. Hughes: And the reason that we insisted on the goalpost pylon, if you will, is so there would be provisions for other tenants if there were in the future.

Mr. Rones: Right.

Mr. Hughes: Let say you don’t buy the building and the continued owner there, is there some way we can make a (inaudible) or something where no future tenants that would enjoy cohabitation with the building could ask for that, or…?

Mr. Donovan: Well, everybody…we can’t really say you can’t…you have to give up your rights; they have the right to come here and ask for a variance.

Mr. Hughes: Yes. All right but getting back to where if you took building over, if you were to purchase it, you understand, what…

Mr. Rones: Yes.

Mr. Donovan: I have a question that I think I asked in-artfully last time; so let me try it again. If we look at the side of the building and maybe if you could come up for a second…? And we just took it from the bottom of the sign, this entire side, here, here, I’d like to get for purposes of scale, the square footage of the side of the building where the sign will be on and the square footage of the sign so the Board can get some idea, are you occupying I don’t want to use the whole building, it won’t be right but are you occupying this area technically, like 90% so we can get some idea of how much of that area where the sign is occupied relative to the building. Now Betty is going to want you to use the microphone so and I asked you to step up.

Ms. Gennarelli: Yes, I am. You can use the…

Mr. Manley: You can actually flip this (microphone) right around. 

Ms. Gennarelli: Thank you.      

Mr. Hickey: Well I did not create this particular artwork. It is my understanding that this artwork is relative to scale. Answer to your question, is the percentage of the wall area certainly this 17K side of that building the percentage is relatively smaller, relative to the 300 just because of how you’ve asked the particular question.

Mr. Donovan: But, and again, I don’t want to use the whole side of the building, but just where the sign is and I don’t know if I’m off base but I think maybe a Board Member might…I’m occupying 25% versus 95% might have a difference because the idea is you want…you know, how much of the building is being taken up? I think, it’s important. 

Chairperson Cardone: Is that sign on the side really necessary?

Mr. Hickey: We believe it is, yes.

Ms. Drake: Would the option be to use a smaller for both signs or eliminate one sign and using the smaller sign or something? 

Mr. Hickey: Well I think we would certainly consider every option and it would certainly be our goal…

Mr. Rones: Smaller really wouldn’t be, as Jim Hickey has explained to me, a smaller sign would just wind up kind of being…

Ms. Drake: You have two sizes here. I’m saying, use the smaller of the two that you have proposed. This one is 30 feet, this one is 34 feet, I’m saying use both signs this size or only put one sign on the building at this size. 

Mr. Hickey: To use the smaller sign on both sides would be O.K. to do that. We would be amenable to that.

Ms. Drake: But you wouldn’t want to go down to just one sign.

Mr. Hickey: No, I think it’s very important because the sign that faces what I’m calling 17K, there is that entire opportunity to identify their headquarters from that traffic coming up and down 300. I know I’m calling it 17K but it angles off in that direction. Both signs are equally as important just giving the exposure of the building; the identity of the building as Finkelstein’s Headquarters and this is also a little sign design than the balance of their stuff. They are identifying this building separately from their other stuff. This is a very, very important piece of marketing and the developing and continuing to grow their business. 

Mr. Hughes: How many square feet is the building all together?

Mr. Rones: I actually…I have an answer. Is that how many square feet of floor space, is that what you are saying?

Mr. Hughes: Right. And how many are you occupying?

Mr. Rones: We’re occupying…

Mr. Donovan: 53%.

Mr. Rones: 53%. Right.

Mr. Hughes: So you have better than half the building?

Mr. Rones: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: And the chances of tracking and becoming the owner are pretty good?

Mr. Rones: Yes. The chances of us occupying the rest of the leaseable space are…the chances of our occupying the rest of the leaseable space as it becomes available is very good. As to whether we would ultimately purchase the building that depends upon whether the building would be offered for sale.

Mr. Hughes: I see. Now, when you say that, are there any other tenants…?

Mr. Rones: We have the right of first refusal with respect to the purchase of the building.

Mr. Hughes: I see. Are there any other tenants in there at present?

Mr. Rones: Yes. 

Mr. Hughes: O.K. So that puts a different little picture on it. How much do they consume of the total square footage? Are they the other half?

Mr. Rones: They are the other 47%. 

Mr. Hickey: And their signage needs are already met.

Mr. Hughes: I beg your pardon?

Mr. Rones: Yes. And their signage needs are already met.

Mr. Hughes: They are satisfied with what they have?

Mr. Rones: Right.

Mr. Hickey: Yes.

Mr. Hughes: And if they are looking for anything more we have the pylons?

Mr. Hickey: Yes.

Mr. Rones: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: I have nothing else.

Chairperson Cardone: I’m still looking for some type of a motion.

Mr. Hughes: Building Department, any comment? 

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: Do we have a motion of any type for approval?

Mr. Manley: Whatever the approval is…the one consideration that I was not aware of prior to now is when I looked at this for the first time and I saw that it says illuminated and it is my understanding that you couldn’t have illuminated. So my concern is with respect to…it’s an existing building so once we approve it now we are setting the state for future approvals for illuminated, somebody buys a building that wasn’t previously a…they want to put an office in and now they want an illuminated sign on the building that opens the door for it.

Mr. Hickey: Frankly I don’t think it does. I think the code already allows it.

Mr. Donovan: I was just...certainly an argument can be made and is being made that it is being diffused because it’s inside now generally indirect illumination means there’s some kind of outside light shining on it. My question was…how has that been…? Obviously there’s a lot of signs in Town. Right? So how has that been interpreted in the past? I keep looking at you guys (the Building Inspector & Fire Inspector/Zoning Inspector)…I’m really sorry to…but…

Mr. Manley: I mean…newer buildings versus older buildings, how is that…?

Mr. Mattina: Joe, Code Compliance, as far as the internally illuminated it doesn’t say you can’t do it once you put the colored letterings over it, to me that diffuses it.

Mr. Donovan: And if that’s what you’ve interpreted it in the past I am not going to sit here tonight…it would be pretty ridiculous of me to say that you know, let’s throw away the last twenty years of the way you have been doing business. 

Mr. Mattina: Right. Chili’s just came from the Planning Board, that’s just approved. That’s all internally illuminated due to the, like you say, the base covering of the plates diffuses the color of the internal. You don’t want spotlights from the inside shooting out. They want a dull light from the internal signs. It doesn’t say you can’t internally light it but you can’t have a bright light from the interior of the sign flashing out onto the street is the way I interpret that. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Hughes: So the diffusion is the important operative word here on this.

Mr. Mattina: Right, they don’t want you driving down the road looking head on into a spotlight coming out of a sign.

Mr. Hughes: True.

Mr. Mattina: They want that light blended off into the background of the color.

Chairperson Cardone: What was the percentage that you were over on the…?

Mr. Donovan: 122%, which would be reduced, I don’t know how much.

Mr. Mattina: I can’t do it off the top of my head.

Mr. Rones: If I could really persuade you, I mean on that larger sign that’s on facing…

Mr. Hughes: 300?

Mr. Rones: Facing17K, we’ll reduce it if you really feel…if that’s the…I’d love to have that.

Mr. Hughes: Joe (Rones) what I read is the larger sign faces…

Mr. Rones: I think it’s proportional to the building.

Chairperson Cardone: The larger sign is in the front.

Mr. Hughes: The larger sign faces 300. 

Mr. Rones: Does it? Oh, it faces 300 well it fronts on 300. 

Mr. Manley: That actually isn’t correct, 122, because we reduced the other sign. 

Mr. Donovan: O.K.

Mr. Rones: It really faces 17K.

Mr. Hughes: It can be read 17K.

Mr. Rones: It can be read from cars traveling west on 17K.

Mr. Hughes: So the application just has it reversed is that what you are saying?

Mr. Rones: Yes, yes.

Mr. Hughes: So the larger sign is on the south side of the building? Southeast?

Ms. Gennarelli: Can you use that microphone, please? Thank you.

Ms. Drake: Here is the building, does this help?

Mr. Hickey: The application is correct as it is.

Mr. Rones: The larger of the signs is…

Mr. Hughes: So the big sign is facing 300 and the other one…?

Mr. Rones: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: They are both pretty big.

Mr. Hughes: Yes.

Chairperson Cardone: The bigger sign.

Mr. Rones: But they are not bigger than what was there before.

Mr. Hughes: No.

Mr. Manley: Actually the calculation is a little lower because it’s 122 is what you had originally applied for but that’s actually less now because you’ve got those pylons were reduced. So…

Mr. Hickey: They were reduced by a total of 48 square feet because you count both sides. They went from 72 to 60 so I don’t know that calculation so it’s…

Mr. Hughes: You have 240 sq ft in both of the pylons.

Mr. Hickey: Correct.

Mr. Hughes: And the rest is?

Mr. Hickey: The rest is on the drawings I gave you.

Mr. Rones: 235 ¼ and 294 so that’s 780 give or take.

Mr. Hughes: 780 and 240 is 1120?

Mr. Donovan: It’s going to be 235 x two, right? So that’s 470.

Chairperson Cardone: And if you reduce them so that they both are 7’8” x 30’.

Mr. Hickey: That’s 470 and a half plus... 

Mr. Donovan: Plus 240…is that what we said? 

Mr. Hickey: Plus 240.

Mr. Donovan: Gives us 700.

Mr. Hughes: 10.

Mr. Donovan: So we’re 392 is allowed. So we’ve cut the variance in half. Right?

Am I right? No I’m not right?

Chairperson Cardone: We’ve reduced it considerably.

Mr. Donovan: We’ve reduced it considerably. It’s not in half but we’ve knocked off over 100 sq ft.

Mr. Manley: 710.

Mr. Donovan: From 817 ½ to 710. 

Mr. Manley: How much were they allowed? 

Mr. Donovan: 392.

Mr. Hughes: Could you live with the two signs on the building being the smaller dimension and the pylons what they are?

Mr. Rones: Yes.

Mr. Manley: So like 318.50 over.

Mr. Hughes: If I can be so bold as to make a motion to condition with approval the two smaller signs on the building and the pylons as they been suggested.

Ms. Eaton: I’ll second it.

Ms. Gennarelli: O.K. Roll call.

                                  John McKelvey: Abstain

                                  Brenda Drake: Yes


                      Ruth Eaton: Yes

                                  Ronald Hughes: Yes



          Michael Maher: Abstain

                                  James Manley: Yes

                                  Grace Cardone: Yes

Mr. Hickey: Thank you very much.

Mr. Rones: Thank you.

Mr. Hughes: Thank you for your patience.

Chairperson Cardone: Thank you. 

(Time Noted – 11:46 PM)
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Chairperson Cardone: Everyone has the minutes from the last month; do we have any additions, deletions, corrections, anything? Do I have a motion to approve the minutes? 

 Ms. Eaton: I’ll make a motion to approve the minutes.

 Mr. Hughes: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone:  This is the meeting where we generally do our reorganization, do I have a nomination for Chair?

Mr. Manley: I nominate Grace Cardone.

Mr. Hughes: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: A nomination for Vice-Chair?

Ms. Eaton: I nominate John McKelvey.

Ms. Drake: Second.

Chairperson Cardone: All those in favor?

Aye All

Chairperson Cardone: Opposed?

No response.

Chairperson Cardone: The meeting is adjourned until February the 28th.
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